
Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting 

 

October 30, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. 

 

City of Fillmore City Hall, City Council Chambers 

250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Public Comments 
Members of the public may address the Board on any matter on the agenda or on any non-agenda 

item within the jurisdiction of the Board. No action will be taken by the Board on any non-agenda 

item. All comments are subject to a five-minute time limit.  

 

4. Approval of Agenda 

Motion 

 

5. Director Announcements/Board Communications 

 

6. Interim Executive Director Update 

Information Item  
The Interim Executive Director will provide an informational update on Agency activities since 

the previous Board meeting of September 18, 2017 

 

7. INFORMATION ITEMS 

A. Update on RFP for Legal Services 

Information Item 
Interim Executive Director will provide a progress report on Agency’s Request for Proposal 

for Legal Services. 

 

B. Brown Act, Rosenberg’s Rules of Order and Other Important Information 

Information Item 
Clerk of the Board for Ventura County Board of Supervisors Brian Palmer will present an 

overview of the Brown Act, Rosenberg’s Rules of Order and other important information and 

guidelines for public meetings.  

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting 

October 30, 2017 

Page 2 

 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of Minutes 
Approval of the minutes from the Board Meeting of September 18, 2017 

 

 

9. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Ventura County Cash Advance Agreement 

Motion 

The Board shall consider approving the agreement for cash advance with the County of 

Ventura. 

 

B. Website design and hosting County of Ventura Information Technology   

Services Department 

Motion 

The Board shall consider approving the estimate and hiring the County of Ventura Information 

Technology Services Department for website design, construction and hosting services creating 

the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency website. 

 

C. Revised Resolution 2017-02 Conflict of Interest Code 
Motion 
The Board shall consider approving the revised Resolution 2017-02 and adopting the amended 

Conflict of Interest Code based upon feedback from the County of Ventura Clerk of the Board 

of Supervisors. 

 

D. Resolution 2017-03 Proposition 1 Groundwater Sustainability Grant 

Program  
Motion 

The Board will consider a Resolution to authorize the preparation and submittal of a 

grant application to the California Department of Water Resources for Proposition 1 

Groundwater Sustainability Plan Grant 

 

E. Cost Reimbursement Agreement with United Water Conservation District 
Motion 

      The Board shall consider approving a cost reimbursement agreement with the United Water  

       Conservation District 

 

F. Future Workshop and Meeting Dates  

Motion 

The Board will review potential scheduling dates for workshops and meetings and direct the 

Interim Executive Director to schedule these items accordingly: 
1. Special Board Meeting to review and approve Prop 1 DWR Grant application PRIOR TO 

November 13 submission deadline 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting 

October 30, 2017 

Page 3 

 
2. Review and select from Proposals for Legal Services, inviting selected legal firms to 

present to the Board at the Regular Board Meeting scheduled for Thursday, November 

16. 

3. Budget Workshops – public outreach working towards approving Budget for January - 

June 2018 

4. Basin Boundary Modification Workshops - public education/outreach working towards 

Basin Boundary Modification submission to DWR in March 2018 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting on  

Thursday, November 16, 2017 or call of the Chair. 

Materials, which are non-exempt public records and are provided to the Board of Directors to be used in consideration of the above agenda items, 

including any documents provided subsequent to the publishing of this agenda, are available for inspection at UWCD’s offices at 106 North 8th 

Street in Santa Paula during normal business hours. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the 

benefits of, the District’s services, programs or activities because of any disability. If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or 

if you require agenda materials in an alternative format, please contact the UWCD Office at (805) 525-4431 or the City of Fillmore at (805) 524-

1500. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make appropriate arrangements.  

 

 

Approved: __________________________________________________ 

 

Posted: (date) October 26, 2017  (time)  10:30 a.m. (attest) Kris Sofley 

At: United Water Conservation District Headquarters, 106 No. 8th St., Santa Paula, CA 

 

Posted: (date) October 26, 2017  (time) 11:00 a.m. (attest) Kris Sofley 

At: Fillmore City Hall, 250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 

 

Posted: (date) October 26, 2017  (time)  11 a.m.  (attest) Kris Sofley 

At: https://www.facebook.com/FPBGSA/ 

 

 



FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  

Item No.  7A 

DATE:  October 30, 2017 

TO:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT:   Update on RFP for Legal Services 

SUMMARY 

As a result of both a direct mailing on September 20, 2017, requesting proposals for legal services and an 

advertisement which ran in the September 26 edition of the Ventura County Star, those firms highlighted 

below have submitted proposals for legal services to the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 

Sustainability Agency in accordance with the guidelines and requirements of its Request for Proposals. 

Contact Legal Firm Office Headquarters 

John P. Dacey Bergman Dacey Goldsmith Los Angeles, CA 90024 

Gary M. Kvistad 
Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck 

Santa Barbara, California  93101-
2711 

Jeffrey Caufield Caufield & James LLP Los Angeles, CA 90071 

Walter E. 
Wendelstein Cohen & Burge LLP Westlake Village, CA 91361 

Mark T. Barney Ferguson Case Orr Paterson LLP Ventura, California 93004 

Joseph D. Hughes Klein DeNatale Goldner Bakersfield, CA 93309 

Henry S. Barbosa Kronick Moskovitz Tiedemann & Girard Claremont, CA 91711 

Thomas S. Bunn III Lagerlof, Senecal, Gosney & Kruse, LLP Pasadena, CA  91101-5123 
Dan Raytis McMurtrey Harsock and Worth Bakersfield, CA 93301 

Gregory J. Newmark Meyers Nave Los Angeles, California 90017 

Allan T. Marks Milbank Tweed Hadley & McCoy Los Angeles, CA 90017 

W. Keith Lemieux Olivarez Madruga Lemieux & O’Neill Westlake Village, CA 91362 

Chip Wullbrandt Price Postell & Parma Santa Barbara CA 93101 

Terence Boga Richards Watson Gershon Los Angeles, California 90071-3101 

Mary C. Alden Smiland Chester Alden Pasadena, California 91101 

Edward J Casey Weston Benhoof Rochefort Rubalcava MacCuish Los Angeles CA 90071 

Alan F Doud Young Wooldridge LLP Bakersfield, Ca 93301-1919 

   

Recd proposal    
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Board to review the submitted proposals and select the law firms it chooses to interview at the 

November 16, 2017 FPB GSA Board of Directors meeting. 



FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILTY AGENCY 
Item No: 7A Update on RFP for Legal Services 
October 30, 2017 
Page 2 
 

BACKGROUND 

At the September 18 Board Meeting, the Board reviewed a proposed Request for Proposal (RFP) for 

Legal Services and directed interim Executive Director to distribute the RFP to eligible law firms.   

Interim Executive Director created a list of eligible law firms in the Los Angeles, Ventura, Santa Barbara 

and Bakersfield areas from both the DWR Attorney list and the ACWA Legal Committee list.  The 13 law 

firms where sent copies of the FBP GSA RFP via regular mail on September 20, 2017.  The interim 

Executive Director also ran an advertisement announcing the availability of the RFP in the Ventura 

County Star newspaper on September 26, 2017. 

As a result of these action, five legal firms submitted proposals for legal services by the October 23, 2017 

deadline. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Fiscal impact is undetermined at this time and will depend on contract negotiations and established 

rates for services of the selected legal firm 

 





























 
 

 

 

PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE LEGAL SERVICES 

Submitted to 

FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS  

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

October 23, 2017 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Lagerlof, Senecal, Gosney and Kruse is pleased to submit this proposal for General Counsel 
services. We understand that the Groundwater Sustainability Agency is seeking its own legal 
counsel in order to avoid conflicts of interest with the legal teams of the member directors’ and 
the stakeholder directors’ agencies, and to insure objectivity and fairness in representing 
sometimes competing interests. Competent legal counsel is especially necessary because SGMA 
is new and untested, and because the Groundwater Sustainability Plan will have wide-ranging 
effects in groundwater management, land use, the environment, and municipal and agricultural 
water use. 
 
We believe we are uniquely suited for this position for the following reasons: 
 

 Our Lead Counsel, Thomas S. Bunn III, serves as general and special counsel for 
numerous water districts, cities, joint powers authorities, other public agencies, and 
private clients. His experience includes all the services listed in the request for proposal 
under General Counsel, and almost all of the services listed under Special Counsel. Tom 
also has substantial groundwater experience, including SGMA matters. 
 

 Although we are a small firm, we have depth and breadth of experience and expertise. 
All the members of our team have experience in general counsel services to public 
agencies, and each brings their own areas of expertise. 
 

 SGMA requires an unprecedented level of stakeholder involvement—much more than 
the Brown Act opportunity for public comment or the CEQA requirement to consider 



 
 

 2 

comments. The Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA has taken this one step further by 
appointing pumper and environmental members to its board of directors. We provide 
an unbiased objectivity that is fair to all points of view, and can help build consensus. 
 

 SGMA is based on the principle that groundwater basins are best managed locally, and 
that one size does not fit all. It is also new. Nobody has ever written a groundwater 
sustainability plan before. Everyone in the state is going through a learning process, 
including the Department of Water Resources. In the words of one commentator, we 
are learning how to build an airplane while we are flying it. This calls for practical and 
innovative solutions, while at the same time complying with statewide requirements. 
Our firm is known for these practical and innovative solutions. 
 

 In our experience, there is often a difference in style among attorneys for cities and 
counties, water districts, and private entities. We are familiar with these differences and 
how to harmonize them. 
 

 One of our hallmarks is the level of service we provide to our clients.  Our firm treats every 
project with a sense of urgency and regards every client as our only client.  Those 
principles have been engrained through our long history.   
 

 We pride ourselves not only on the quality of our work, but on our level of responsiveness.  
All communications, whether they are by phone, e-mail or text message, are returned 
within the same workday.  In addition, we are available on a “24-7” basis if an urgent need 
arises.  While turnaround time on specific projects depends on the complexity of the 
particular project, in all cases we will meet the GSA’s time frame for when it must have 
an answer or a particular end product.  

 
We are excited at the opportunity to get in on the ground floor, and to assist the GSA as it 
creates a plan that will meet the needs of the different interests in the basin and provide a 
roadmap for years to come. 
 
       Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
       Thomas S. Bunn III 

  



 
 

 3 

 

 

OUR FIRM 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

 
LAGERLOF, SENECAL, GOSNEY & KRUSE, LLP is a full-service law firm located in 
Pasadena, California. In practice since 1908, the firm has earned a solid 
reputation for innovation tempered with practicality, for thoroughness 
tempered with common sense, and for the integrity, commitment and value we 
bring to every engagement. Our clients see us as trusted advisors, respected for 
our business counsel as much as for our legal expertise. 
 
The firm’s practice is diverse, serving individuals, businesses, municipalities and 
nonprofits. Our expertise spans corporate law, labor, tax, litigation, estate 
planning, probate and trust, real estate, construction, bankruptcy, oil and gas, 
municipal law, and water and natural resources law. We engage in general civil, 
trial and appellate practice in all state and federal courts and administrative 
agencies. 
 
 

THE MUNICIPAL AND WATER LAW PRACTICE 

 
 
Lagerlof, Senecal, Gosney & Kruse, LLP, has practiced municipal and water law 
for more than 80 years, and has earned an unparalleled reputation in this area. 
We have participated in many of southern California’s most prominent water 
rights cases, and continue to serve as general counsel for numerous public 
agencies and mutual water companies, advising them on day-to-day operations, 
regulatory compliance, legislative issues and administrative matters. 
 
Our clients include municipal, county and California water districts, irrigation 
districts, water conservation districts, cities, other public water agencies, joint 
powers authorities, watermasters, mutual water companies, and private water 
rights holders. A list of current and former public agency clients is attached as 
Appendix 1. 
 

  



 
 

 4 

 
 
 
The firm's diverse experience includes the following:   
 

• Brown Act and Public Records Act compliance 
• Political Reform Act and conflict-of-interest matters 
• Personnel and employment law matters 
• Contract preparation and dispute resolution 
• Water rights validations, adjudications and transfers 
• Land and facilities acquisitions through condemnation proceedings and by 

negotiated purchase. 
• CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) processing and litigation 
• Clean Water Act and NPDES permit issues 
• All phases of public financing 
• Rate setting and Proposition 26 and 218 compliance 
• LAFCO (Local Agency Formation Commission) proceedings 
• Public works construction 

 
Over the past 80 years, our firm has assisted scores of private and public water 
agencies.  We have conducted numerous water rights investigations, analyzed 
historical water development records, and rendered many opinions relating to 
the confirmation of water rights throughout California.  We also have assisted 
our clients in water-related, environmental, public finance, legislative, rate-
setting, contractual, employment and litigated matters.   
 
We have served as special counsel for the Association of California Water 
Agencies (ACWA), and currently serve as general counsel to the California Rural 
Water Association, the California Association of Mutual Water Companies, and 
the Public Water Agencies Group. 
  



 
 

 5 

OUR TEAM 

The resumes of the team members are below. Key team members include: 
 
Thomas S. Bunn III: Tom will serve as Lead Counsel. Tom has represented public 
agencies for over 20 years, including joint powers authorities, county water 
districts, irrigation districts, and cities. His experience and expertise encompasses 
all the services listed in the request for proposal under General Counsel. 
 
Tom has acquired special expertise in groundwater matters. He represents 
numerous groundwater rights holders, including not only public agencies but also 
private pumpers. He participated in the Mojave, Six Basins, and Antelope Valley 
adjudications. He currently represents clients in ongoing issues in the Chino, 
Upper Los Angeles River Area, and Rialto basins. 
 
Tom is general counsel to the Hemet-San Jacinto Watermaster, which is similar to 
the Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA, in that its board of directors has representatives 
from cities, water districts, and private (agricultural and dairy) pumpers. 
 
Tom represents clients in SGMA matters in the Indian Wells Valley, Kern, Upper 
Santa Clara River, and Borrego Springs basins. 
 
James D. Ciampa: Jim also has many years’ experience as general counsel to public 
agencies. He has special expertise in municipal finance, including Proposition 218; 
and in environmental law, including CEQA and Clean Water Act. 
 
Andrew D. Turner: Andy is general counsel to public agencies as well as to many 
mutual water companies. In addition, he has expertise in labor and employment 
matters and personnel matters. 
 
Other attorneys: The above attorneys will be assisted by Roland Trinh, Emma 
Fabeck, Dominic Nunneri, and Collin Spillman (currently awaiting bar results), as 
appropriate to provide timely and cost-effective service. 
 
Perkins Coie: The only area listed under Special Counsel in which our firm does 
not have substantial experience and expertise is the California and federal 
Endangered Species Act. Should special counsel be needed in that area, we 
propose to associate the firm of Perkins Coie, led by Laura Godfrey Zagar. The 
firm’s capabilities and resumes of their team are attached as Appendix 2. 

 
BACKGROUND AND QUALIFICATIONS FOR RELEVANT ATTORNEYS 



 
 

 6 

Thomas S. Bunn III 
Tom Bunn has been an attorney with Lagerlof, Senecal, Gosney & 
Kruse, LLP, for more than 30 years. He practices business law and 
business litigation, with emphasis on water and water rights, public 
agencies, real estate, commercial transactions and bankruptcy.  
 
In water matters, Mr. Bunn represents both public agencies and 
private clients, with special expertise in Proposition 218 and 
Proposition 26 compliance, groundwater, water rights and water 
transfers.  Currently he is working in a number of groundwater 
basins toward the formation of groundwater sustainability agencies 
and groundwater sustainability plans under the Sustainable 

Groundwater Management Act of 2014.  He has participated in the negotiation and 
implementation of groundwater management plans, and represents water producers in 
litigation, including groundwater basin adjudications, and before the State Water Resources 
Control Board.  He represented Western Water Company in a groundbreaking water transfer, 
marking the first time that the Metropolitan Water District exchanged water with a private 
company for delivery within its service area.  
 
Mr. Bunn is general counsel for Newhall County Water District, Crescenta Valley Water District, 
and the Hemet San Jacinto Watermaster. He represents Palmdale Water District in connection 
with the Antelope Valley groundwater adjudication and the formation and operation of its 
watermaster. 
 

Mr. Bunn serves on the Groundwater Committee of  the Association of California Water 
Agencies. He participated in drafting the Groundwater Management Act (AB 3030), which 
allows for local control and management of groundwater, and has been intimately involved in 
negotiations that resulted in the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 and 
related follow up legislation.  
 
Mr. Bunn's real estate practice embraces all types of clients and matters, including real estate 
purchase and sale transactions, leasing transactions, ground leasing and all types of real estate 
and construction disputes. He prepares and negotiates commercial agreements, financing, 
security agreements and contracts of all kinds. He also represents clients in matters of 
litigation, and has achieved significant victories in the Court of Appeal and the California 
Supreme Court, including a Proposition 13 case in which Ventura Port District and Ventura 
County were co-defendants. 
 

James D. Ciampa 
 



 
 

 7 

James Ciampa, a managing partner with the firm, practices 
municipal, water, real estate, business, employment and 
environmental law. Mr. Ciampa currently represents many retail 
water purveyors and various public agencies throughout Southern 
California.  Through his work with public sector clients, Mr. Ciampa 
has gained particular expertise in drafting and negotiation of 
legislation, with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), in 
municipal finance and in rate setting, including compliance with 
Propositions 26 and 218.  His experience includes providing advice 
to clients concerning short-term operational issues and long-term 
planning.  

 
Mr. Ciampa serves as general counsel for Walnut Valley Water District, Pico Water District, 
Puente Basin Water Agency, San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District, Public Water Agencies 
Group and numerous mutual water companies, and as assistant general counsel for numerous 
other public and private water suppliers.  He serves as general counsel to the California Rural 
Water Association and California Association of Mutual Water Companies. He also has been 
general counsel for several real estate development and computer software consulting firms.  
 
Mr. Ciampa also assists clients with various real estate matters, including purchases, sales and 
exchanges; development, entitlement and financing issues; easement and boundary matters; 
and representation of homeowners associations. He also has represented various business 
entities with respect to formation, financing, operational issues, stock and asset sales, labor and 
employment matters, litigation and dissolution.  
 
Mr. Ciampa is active in civic affairs, currently serving as a committee chairman for the Pasadena 
Tournament of Roses Association. He has served on the Executive Committee of the Southern 
California Rugby Football Club, and is a founding coach of the Pasadena Pythons Youth Rugby 
Club.  Mr. Ciampa is a member of the Pasadena, Los Angeles County and California Bar 
Associations. 
  



 
 

 8 

Andrew D. Turner 

Andrew Turner, a partner with the firm since 1991, practices 
municipal, real estate, water, employment and business law, with 
an emphasis in civil litigation. He is well known for his expertise in 
advising business owners and operators on day-to-day matters 
including employment issues, contracts and regulatory compliance. 

Andy has extensive experience representing retail urban water 
purveyors of all types in Southern California, ranging from providing 
immediate response to the many issues they encounter daily, to 
handling complex litigation and public works construction matters. 
His accomplishments include representation as Amicus Curiae in a 

major dispute between two public agencies over the cost of relocating underground pipelines, 
which led the Court of Appeals to a favorable resolution for California water purveyors. 
Recognized statewide as an expert in matters involving mutual water companies, Andy has 
been deeply involved in recent legislation affecting these organizations. He and partner Jim 
Ciampa have headed up the lobbying effort on a number of bills that could have adversely 
impacted how mutual water companies operate. They also were instrumental in founding the 
California Association of Mutual Water Companies, an organization created to bring together 
the diverse interests of mutual water companies throughout the State, and to advocate and 
educate on their behalf. 

A proud Banana Slug, Andy received his B.A. in Economics from the University of California at 
Santa Cruz, and his J.D. from the USC Law Center, where he was a member of the Major Tax 
Planning Journal and the Computer/Law Journal. He is an active leader in Boy Scouts and a 
member of the California State Bar, and the Pasadena and Los Angeles County Bar Associations. 

 

 

  



 
 

 9 

Roland Trinh 

Roland Trinh, a partner at Lagerlof, Senecal, Gosney & Kruse, is 
involved in a majority of the firm’s litigation and chairs its 
intellectual property practice, focused primarily on trademark 
prosecution and maintenance.  He also practices in the public 
agency and water law area, and serves as general counsel to La 
Puente Valley County Water District, as well as to corporate 
clients, and assists other public agency water clients. 

Roland received his B.A. in history from the University of California 
at Berkeley in 2001. A native of Pasadena, he worked for Yahoo! 

Search Marketing (formerly Overture.com) before earning his J.D. from UCLA School of Law in 
2005.  Roland was a clerk at the Office of General Counsel for the California State University 
before serving as a summer associate at Lagerlof, Senecal, Gosney & Kruse, LLP in the summer 
of 2004. He joined the firm as an associate in 2005 and was named a partner in 2014. He is 
conversant in Cantonese. 
 
Roland serves as a member of the Board of Directors of the Pasadena Police Activities League 
(PAL), a youth crime prevention program that provides an array of activities designed to 
enhance the educational, athletic and artistic experience of Pasadena’s youth, while fostering 
positive attitudes toward authority figures and law enforcement in a safe and stable after-
school environment. He is a fan of all things Cal-Berkeley, an avid sports enthusiast, and enjoys 
traveling, camping, snowboarding, motorcycles, music, contemporary art and searching for 
food nirvana. 

 
  



 
 

 10 

 

Emma Jane Fabeck 

Emma Jane Fabeck is an associate at Lagerlof, Senecal, Gosney & 
Kruse, LLP. Her practice focuses on real estate transactions, estate 
planning, trust administration and probate. Emma Jane is 
particularly adept at assisting clients with complex real estate 
acquisition and disposition transactions, commercial leasing, 
financing, entity formation for asset protection, change-in-
ownership issues, structuring estate plans, title issues and tax 
related issues. She frequently conducts extensive title 
examinations, and has issued title opinions regarding riparian water 
rights, restrictive covenants, easements and title defects. Prior to 
joining the firm, Emma Jane developed a strong personal and 

professional background in commercial real estate. This background gives her a unique insight 
into the needs and concerns of investment property owners. 
 
Emma Jane received her Bachelor of Arts Degree from the University of Southern California in 
2009, before earning her Juris Doctorate Degree from Loyola Law School in 2014. While in law 
school Emma Jane participated in the Center for Conflict Resolution’s Collaborative Mediation 
Clinic and the Bankruptcy Practicum at the Legal Aid Foundation of Los Angeles.  She was 
admitted to the State Bar in 2014. 
 

  



 
 

 11 

Dominic J. Nunneri 

Dominic Nunneri joined the firm in 2014, and has performed 
litigation, transactional, and regulatory compliance work for public 
agencies, as well as private companies and families.  He has 
counseled water purveyors concerning compliance with new laws, 
regulations, and permits.  Mr. Nunneri has assisted numerous public 
agencies and mutual water companies who must comply with the 
terms of the statewide permit for potable water system discharges 
issued under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System.  

 
He has assisted on various litigated matters and recently helped 

draft appellate briefs that gained a successful result for a public agency client in a Brown Act 
dispute. He also negotiated with a large municipality for the renewal of an investor-owned 
utility client’s franchise agreement. 
 
Mr. Nunneri graduated from UCLA, where he earned his B.A. in Political Science. He 
subsequently earned his J.D. from the University of Southern California, Gould School of Law. 
While at USC, he served as a staff member of the Southern California Review of Law and Social 
Justice, and also was a member of the Mediation Clinic, where he mediated over 40 small 
claims cases. 
 
Mr. Nunneri is a board member of the Italian American Lawyers Association. He is also a 
member of the Pasadena Bar Association. He enjoys hiking, traveling, basketball and baseball. 



 
 

 12 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE FOR RELEVANT ATTORNEYS 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  

ATTORNEY HOURLY RATE 

Thomas S. Bunn III $360 

James D. Ciampa $360 

Andrew D. Turner $360 

Roland Trinh $275 

Emma Jane Fabeck $250 

Dominic J. Nunneri 

Collin Y. Spillman 

  (upon bar admission) 

$250 

$150 

$200 

  



 
 

 13 

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS 
 
 
We do not have any actual or potential conflicts of interest with any Member or 
Stakeholder entity. 
 
Tom Bunn is general counsel for Newhall County Water District, which is a 
member of the Santa Clarita Valley Groundwater Sustainability Agency. On 
January 1, 2018, Newhall County Water District and Castaic Lake Water Agency 
will merge into the newly created Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV 
Water). It is likely that the firm will continue to represent SCV Water after the 
merger. 
 
The Santa Clarita Valley GSA does not have its own attorney. In his capacity as 
general counsel for Newhall County Water District, Tom has provided advice to 
the GSA and may continue to do so. 
 
It is possible that quantity or quality issues will arise between the two GSAs. We 
believe this is unlikely, however. The upstream and downstream basins have 
worked well with each other in the past. We understand that there is a 
substantial issue relating to chlorides in the Santa Clara River, but that issue 
mainly concerns the Sanitation District. 
 
We anticipate a written disclosure and waiver of the potential conflict by both 
agencies. If an issue were to arise between the two GSAs, our firm would not 
represent or provide advice to the Santa Clarita Valley GSA on that issue. Any 
further actions would require further evaluation, depending on the particular 
circumstances at the time. It is possible that our firm would have to withdraw 
from representing either client in connection with the issue. 

  



 
 

 14 

REFERENCES 
 

1. Palmdale Water District 
Contact: Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 
(661) 947-4111 dlamoreaux@palmdalewater.org 
 
Tom Bunn represented Palmdale Water District in the Antelope Valley 
groundwater adjudication for 16 years. More significantly, over the past two 
years he has provided substantial assistance to the Watermaster (which does not 
yet have its own attorney) in its start-up activities. Tom has gained the trust of 
both the public water suppliers and the overlying landowners, and as such has 
been able to assist both sides in reaching a consensus that is in the best interest 
of the basin. He was invited to submit a proposal to represent the Watermaster, 
but determined he could not represent the Watermaster and the District at the 
same time. 
 
2. Hemet San Jacinto Watermaster 
Contact: Behrooz Mortazavi, Watermaster Advisor 
(714) 794-5520 bmortazavi@msn.com 
 
The Watermaster was appointed in the adjudication of the San Jacinto Basin. 
Similarly to the Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA, the Watermaster has a 
representative board of directors, consisting of representatives from Eastern 
Municipal Water District, Lake Hemet Municipal Water District, the cities of 
Hemet and San Jacinto, and the private pumpers. Tom Bunn is general counsel to 
the Watermaster, and has provided unbiased, objective and practical advice. 
 
3. Newhall County Water District 
Contact: Steve Cole, General Manager 
(661) 259-3610 scole@ncwd.org 
 
Tom Bunn is general counsel to the District and provides similar services to those 
specified in the request for proposal. In addition, Tom was instrumental in 
resolving a dispute that arose when Castaic Lake Water Agency acquired the 
stock of Valencia Water Company, one of its retailers. Newhall County Water 
District believed that Castaic violated a promise it had made not to provide retail 
service outside a defined area. Newhall believed that Castaic’s next target was to 
take over Newhall itself. Tom facilitated a resolution under which the two 
agencies agreed to form a new agency—a merger of equals rather than a 
takeover. That way, Newhall can bring its own culture to the new agency. The 
governor signed legislation implementing this settlement on October 15, 2017.  

mailto:dlamoreaux@palmdalewater.org
mailto:bmortazavi@msn.com
mailto:scole@ncwd.org


 
 

 15 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY CLIENT LIST 
 

Following is a listing of clients for whom the firm has provided or is providing public agency and 
water law services: 
 
(Note that General Counsel services typically include attendance at Board meetings; review and 
input on Board meeting agendas and minutes; advice and consultation on any issues that arise 
for the agency, including preparation, review and revision of contracts; and general assistance 
with matters relating to the agency.) 
 
General Counsel (Current) 
 
Central Basin Water Association – Tony Zampiello, Executive Secretary, (626) 815-1300  

Crescenta Valley Water District – Tom Love, General Manager, (818) 248-3925 

Hemet-San Jacinto Watermaster – Behrooz Mortazavi, Watermaster Advisor, (714) 794-5520 

Kinneloa Irrigation District – Mel Matthews, General Manager, (626) 797-6295 

La Puente Valley County Water District – Greg Galindo, General Manager, (626) 330-2126 

Newhall County Water District – Steve Cole, General Manager, (661) 259-3610 

Orchard Dale Water District – Ed Castaneda, General Manager, (562) 941-0114 

Pico Water District – Mark Grajeda, General Manager, (562) 692-3756 

Pomona-Walnut-Rowland Joint Waterline Commission – Erik Hitchman, Administrative Officer,  
(909) 595-1268 

Public Water Agencies Group – Tom Coleman, Chair, (562) 697-1726 

Puente Basin Water Agency – Michael Holmes, Administrative Officer, (909) 595-1268 

San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District– Darin Kasamoto, General Manager, (626) 969-7911 

Ventura Port District –Oscar Pena, General Manager, (805) 642-8538 

Walnut Valley Water District – Michael Holmes, General Manager, (909) 595-1268 

West Valley County Water District – Mark Crosby, General Manager, (661) 724-1860 
 
General Counsel (Former)  [contact names omitted where staff changes have occurred since our 
prior representation] 
 
Bighorn Desert View Water Agency – (760) 364-2315 

Castaic Lake Water Agency – (661) 297-1600 

Hidden Valley Municipal Water District – (805) 498-8139 

Palmdale Water District – Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager, (661) 947-4111 

Palm Ranch Irrigation District – (661) 943-2469 



 
 

 16 

Quartz Hill Water District – Chad Reed, General Manager, (661) 943-3170 

Sativa-Los Angeles County Water District – Thomas Martin, General Manager, (310) 631-8176 

United Water Conservation District – (805) 525-4431 

Water Replenishment District of Southern California – Robb Whitaker, General Manager,  
(562) 424-6688 

 
 
Special Counsel (Current) 
 
Cucamonga Valley Water District – Martin Zvirbulis, General Manager, (909) 987-2591; litigation 

concerning Rialto Groundwater Basin; former consulting on water rights issues 
City of California City – Christian Bettenhausen, City Attorney, (714) 446-1400; assistance with 

water rights issues 
City of Grand Terrace – Richard Adams, City Attorney, (714) 446-1400; assistance in rate and 

facility dispute with neighboring city 
City of Lakewood – (562) 866-9771; representation in Central Basin Third Amended Judgment 

negotiations and related court proceedings 
City of Long Beach – Long Beach Water Department, (562) 570-2300; representation in Central 

Basin Third Amended Judgment negotiations and related court proceedings 
City of Norwalk – Adriana Figueroa, Administrative Services Manager, (562) 929-5511; assistance 

with real property leasing 
City of Pasadena – Pasadena Water and Power; Lisa Hosey, Assistant City Attorney, (626) 744-

4141; assistance with water rights issue and Clean Water Act compliance 
City of Pomona – Darron Poulsen, Water and Wastewater Operations Director, (909) 620-2251; 

representation in Six Basins and Chino Basin Adjudications and other water-related issues 
Palmdale Water District – Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager, (661) 947-4111; representation 

in the Antelope Valley Adjudication. 
 
Special Counsel (Former – services rendered within last 10 years) 
 
Camrosa Water District – current contact unknown; (805) 482-4677; Clean Water Act/Section 

404 permit 

City of La Habra – Jim Sadro, City Manager, (562) 383-4000; assistance with LAFCO issues 

East Orange County Water District – contact has passed away; (714) 538-5815; district 
reorganization/LAFCO issue 

La Habra Heights County Water District – Michael Gualtieri, General Manager, (562) 697-6769; 
assistance with Regional Water Quality Control Board NPDES permit issue 

Olivenhain Municipal Water District - (760) 753-6466; preparation of legal opinion regarding 
authority to bottle and sell district water 

Rowland Water District – Tom Coleman, General Manager, (562) 697-1726; analysis and opinion 
concerning Main San Gabriel Basin Judgment  



 
 

 17 

San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District – David Cosgrove, General Counsel,  

(714) 662-4602; assistance with challenge to proposed consolidation through San 
Bernardino County LAFCO and assistance with employment-related matter 

Ventura County Waterworks District No. 1 – Reddy Pakala, Ventura County Director of Water and 
Sanitation (805) 654-2320; assistance with water rights issues 

City of Vernon – Scott Rigg, Public Works and Water Superintendent, (323) 583-8811, ext. 279; 
assistance with water rights transaction 

Western Municipal Water District – John Rossi, General Manager, (951) 571-7100; assistance 
with Public Records Act issues 

 

Special Counsel (Former – representation ended more than 10 years ago) [no contact 
information provided due to length of time since representation ended] 
 
City of Beverly Hills 

City of Brea 

Central Basin Municipal Water District 

City of Chino 

City of Colton 

City of Compton 

City of Fillmore 

Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency 

City of Hermosa Beach 

City of Inglewood 

Littlerock Creek Irrigation District 

Meiners Oaks County Water District 

Morongo Community Services District 

City of Monrovia 

City of Moorpark 

City of Ojai 

Palo Verde Irrigation District 

City of Redlands 

City of Redondo Beach 

City of Rialto 

City of Simi Valley 

City of San Bernardino 

Trabuco Canyon Water District 

City of Upland 

Vallecitos County Water District 

Vista Irrigation District 

West San Bernardino County Water District 



























































































FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  

Item No.  7B 

DATE:  October 30, 2017 

TO:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT:   Brown Act, Rosenberg’s Rules of Order and Other Important Information  

SUMMARY 

Clerk of the Board for Ventura County Board of Supervisors Brian Palmer will present an overview of the 

Brown Act, Rosenberg’s Rules of Order and other important information and guidelines for public 

meetings. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Participate in presentation 

BACKGROUND 

During the July 26 Board of Directors meeting, Chair Long suggested that interim Executive Director 

reach out to Brian Palmer, clerk of the board for the Ventura County Board of Supervisors, to invite him 

to make a presentation to the FPB GSA Board members regarding the Brown Act, Robert’s Rules of 

Order and other pertinent information regarding public meeting requirements and guidelines for orders 

of business of the Board. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact for this information item 

 



Rosenberg’s Rules of Order
REVISED 2011

Simple Rules of Parliamentary Procedure for the 21st Century

By Judge Dave Rosenberg



II

MISSION and CORE BELIEFS
To expand and protect local control for cities through education and advocacy to enhance the quality of life for all Californians.

VISION
To be recognized and respected as the leading advocate for the common interests of California’s cities.

About the League of California Cities
Established in 1898, the League of California Cities is a member organization that represents California’s incorporated cities. 

The League strives to protect the local authority and automony of city government and help California’s cities effectively 

serve their residents. In addition to advocating on cities’ behalf at the state capitol, the League provides its members with 

professional development programs and information resources, conducts education conferences and research, and publishes 

Western City magazine.

© 2011 League of California Cities. All rights reserved.

About the Author
Dave Rosenberg is a Superior Court Judge in Yolo County. He has served as presiding judge of his court, and as 

presiding judge of the Superior Court Appellate Division. He also has served as chair of the Trial Court Presiding Judges 

Advisory Committee (the committee composed of all 58 California presiding judges) and as an advisory member of the 

California Judicial Council. Prior to his appointment to the bench, Rosenberg was member of the Yolo County Board of 

Supervisors, where he served two terms as chair. Rosenberg also served on the Davis City Council, including two terms 

as mayor. He has served on the senior staff of two governors, and worked for 19 years in private law practice. Rosenberg 

has served as a member and chair of numerous state, regional and local boards. Rosenberg chaired the California State 

Lottery Commission, the California Victim Compensation and Government Claims Board, the Yolo-Solano Air Quality 

Management District, the Yolo County Economic Development Commission, and the Yolo County Criminal Justice 

Cabinet. For many years, he has taught classes on parliamentary procedure and has served as parliamentarian for large 

and small bodies.



1

Table of Contents

About the Author ............................................................................................................ii

Introduction ....................................................................................................................2

Establishing a Quorum ...................................................................................................2

The Role of the Chair ......................................................................................................2

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Discussion ........................................................2

Motions in General .........................................................................................................3

The Three Basic Motions ................................................................................................3

Multiple Motions Before the Body .................................................................................4

To Debate or Not to Debate ............................................................................................4

Majority and Super-Majority Votes ...............................................................................5

Counting Votes ................................................................................................................5

The Motion to Reconsider ..............................................................................................6

Courtesy and Decorum ..................................................................................................7

Special Notes About Public Input ..................................................................................7



2

Establishing a Quorum
The starting point for a meeting is the establishment of a quorum. 
A quorum is defined as the minimum number of members of the 
body who must be present at a meeting for business to be legally 
transacted. The default rule is that a quorum is one more than half 
the body. For example, in a five-member body a quorum is three. 
When the body has three members present, it can legally transact 
business. If the body has less than a quorum of members present, it 
cannot legally transact business. And even if the body has a quorum 
to begin the meeting, the body can lose the quorum during the 
meeting when a member departs (or even when a member leaves the 
dais). When that occurs the body loses its ability to transact business 
until and unless a quorum is reestablished. 

The default rule, identified above, however, gives way to a specific 
rule of the body that establishes a quorum. For example, the rules of 
a particular five-member body may indicate that a quorum is four 
members for that particular body. The body must follow the rules it 
has established for its quorum. In the absence of such a specific rule, 
the quorum is one more than half the members of the body.

The Role of the Chair
While all members of the body should know and understand the 
rules of parliamentary procedure, it is the chair of the body who is 
charged with applying the rules of conduct of the meeting. The chair 
should be well versed in those rules. For all intents and purposes, the 
chair makes the final ruling on the rules every time the chair states an 
action. In fact, all decisions by the chair are final unless overruled by 
the body itself. 

Since the chair runs the conduct of the meeting, it is usual courtesy 
for the chair to play a less active role in the debate and discussion 
than other members of the body. This does not mean that the chair 
should not participate in the debate or discussion. To the contrary, as 
a member of the body, the chair has the full right to participate in the 
debate, discussion and decision-making of the body. What the chair 
should do, however, is strive to be the last to speak at the discussion 
and debate stage. The chair should not make or second a motion 
unless the chair is convinced that no other member of the body will 
do so at that point in time.

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Discussion
Formal meetings normally have a written, often published agenda. 
Informal meetings may have only an oral or understood agenda. In 
either case, the meeting is governed by the agenda and the agenda 
constitutes the body’s agreed-upon roadmap for the meeting. Each 
agenda item can be handled by the chair in the following basic 
format:

Introduction

The rules of procedure at meetings should be simple enough for 
most people to understand. Unfortunately, that has not always been 
the case. Virtually all clubs, associations, boards, councils and bodies 
follow a set of rules — Robert’s Rules of Order — which are embodied 
in a small, but complex, book. Virtually no one I know has actually 
read this book cover to cover. Worse yet, the book was written for 
another time and for another purpose. If one is chairing or running 
a parliament, then Robert’s Rules of Order is a dandy and quite useful 
handbook for procedure in that complex setting. On the other hand, 
if one is running a meeting of say, a five-member body with a few 
members of the public in attendance, a simplified version of the rules 
of parliamentary procedure is in order.

Hence, the birth of Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.

What follows is my version of the rules of parliamentary procedure, 
based on my decades of experience chairing meetings in state and 
local government. These rules have been simplified for the smaller 
bodies we chair or in which we participate, slimmed down for the 
21st Century, yet retaining the basic tenets of order to which we have 
grown accustomed. Interestingly enough, Rosenberg’s Rules has found 
a welcoming audience. Hundreds of cities, counties, special districts, 
committees, boards, commissions, neighborhood associations and 
private corporations and companies have adopted Rosenberg’s Rules 
in lieu of Robert’s Rules because they have found them practical, 
logical, simple, easy to learn and user friendly. 

This treatise on modern parliamentary procedure is built on a 
foundation supported by the following four pillars: 

1. Rules should establish order. The first purpose of rules of 
parliamentary procedure is to establish a framework for the 
orderly conduct of meetings.

2. Rules should be clear. Simple rules lead to wider understanding 
and participation. Complex rules create two classes: those 
who understand and participate; and those who do not fully 
understand and do not fully participate.

3. Rules should be user friendly. That is, the rules must be simple 
enough that the public is invited into the body and feels that it 
has participated in the process.

4. Rules should enforce the will of the majority while protecting 
the rights of the minority. The ultimate purpose of rules of 
procedure is to encourage discussion and to facilitate decision 
making by the body. In a democracy, majority rules. The rules 
must enable the majority to express itself and fashion a result, 
while permitting the minority to also express itself, but not 
dominate, while fully participating in the process.



3

Ninth, the chair takes a vote. Simply asking for the “ayes” and then 
asking for the “nays” normally does this. If members of the body do 
not vote, then they “abstain.” Unless the rules of the body provide 
otherwise (or unless a super majority is required as delineated later 
in these rules), then a simple majority (as defined in law or the rules 
of the body as delineated later in these rules) determines whether the 
motion passes or is defeated. 

Tenth, the chair should announce the result of the vote and what 
action (if any) the body has taken. In announcing the result, the chair 
should indicate the names of the members of the body, if any, who 
voted in the minority on the motion. This announcement might take 
the following form: “The motion passes by a vote of 3-2, with Smith 
and Jones dissenting. We have passed the motion requiring a 10-day 
notice for all future meetings of this body.”

Motions in General
Motions are the vehicles for decision making by a body. It is usually 
best to have a motion before the body prior to commencing 
discussion of an agenda item. This helps the body focus.

Motions are made in a simple two-step process. First, the chair 
should recognize the member of the body. Second, the member 
of the body makes a motion by preceding the member’s desired 
approach with the words “I move … ”

A typical motion might be: “I move that we give a 10-day notice in 
the future for all our meetings.”

The chair usually initiates the motion in one of three ways:

1. Inviting the members of the body to make a motion, for 
example, “A motion at this time would be in order.” 

2. Suggesting a motion to the members of the body, “A motion 
would be in order that we give a 10-day notice in the future for all 
our meetings.” 

3. Making the motion. As noted, the chair has every right as a 
member of the body to make a motion, but should normally do 
so only if the chair wishes to make a motion on an item but is 
convinced that no other member of the body is willing to step 
forward to do so at a particular time.

The Three Basic Motions
There are three motions that are the most common and recur often 
at meetings:

The basic motion. The basic motion is the one that puts forward a 
decision for the body’s consideration. A basic motion might be: “I 
move that we create a five-member committee to plan and put on 
our annual fundraiser.” 

First, the chair should clearly announce the agenda item number and 
should clearly state what the agenda item subject is. The chair should 
then announce the format (which follows) that will be followed in 
considering the agenda item.

Second, following that agenda format, the chair should invite the 
appropriate person or persons to report on the item, including any 
recommendation that they might have. The appropriate person or 
persons may be the chair, a member of the body, a staff person, or a 
committee chair charged with providing input on the agenda item.

Third, the chair should ask members of the body if they have any 
technical questions of clarification. At this point, members of the 
body may ask clarifying questions to the person or persons who 
reported on the item, and that person or persons should be given 
time to respond.

Fourth, the chair should invite public comments, or if appropriate at 
a formal meeting, should open the public meeting for public input. 
If numerous members of the public indicate a desire to speak to 
the subject, the chair may limit the time of public speakers. At the 
conclusion of the public comments, the chair should announce that 
public input has concluded (or the public hearing, as the case may be, 
is closed).

Fifth, the chair should invite a motion. The chair should announce 
the name of the member of the body who makes the motion.

Sixth, the chair should determine if any member of the body wishes 
to second the motion. The chair should announce the name of the 
member of the body who seconds the motion. It is normally good 
practice for a motion to require a second before proceeding to 
ensure that it is not just one member of the body who is interested 
in a particular approach. However, a second is not an absolute 
requirement, and the chair can proceed with consideration and vote 
on a motion even when there is no second. This is a matter left to the 
discretion of the chair.

Seventh, if the motion is made and seconded, the chair should make 
sure everyone understands the motion. 

This is done in one of three ways:

1. The chair can ask the maker of the motion to repeat it;

2. The chair can repeat the motion; or

3. The chair can ask the secretary or the clerk of the body to repeat 
the motion.

Eighth, the chair should now invite discussion of the motion by the 
body. If there is no desired discussion, or after the discussion has 
ended, the chair should announce that the body will vote on the 
motion. If there has been no discussion or very brief discussion, then 
the vote on the motion should proceed immediately and there is no 
need to repeat the motion. If there has been substantial discussion, 
then it is normally best to make sure everyone understands the 
motion by repeating it.



4

as follows:

First, the chair would deal with the third (the last) motion on the 
floor, the substitute motion. After discussion and debate, a vote 
would be taken first on the third motion. If the substitute motion 
passed, it would be a substitute for the basic motion and would 
eliminate it. The first motion would be moot, as would the second 
motion (which sought to amend the first motion), and the action on 
the agenda item would be completed on the passage by the body of 
the third motion (the substitute motion). No vote would be taken on 
the first or second motions. 

Second, if the substitute motion failed, the chair would then deal 
with the second (now the last) motion on the floor, the motion 
to amend. The discussion and debate would focus strictly on the 
amendment (should the committee be five or 10 members). If the 
motion to amend passed, the chair would then move to consider the 
main motion (the first motion) as amended. If the motion to amend 
failed, the chair would then move to consider the main motion (the 
first motion) in its original format, not amended.

Third, the chair would now deal with the first motion that was placed 
on the floor. The original motion would either be in its original 
format (five-member committee), or if amended, would be in its 
amended format (10-member committee). The question on the floor 
for discussion and decision would be whether a committee should 
plan and put on the annual fundraiser.

To Debate or Not to Debate
The basic rule of motions is that they are subject to discussion and 
debate. Accordingly, basic motions, motions to amend, and substitute 
motions are all eligible, each in their turn, for full discussion before 
and by the body. The debate can continue as long as members of the 
body wish to discuss an item, subject to the decision of the chair that 
it is time to move on and take action.

There are exceptions to the general rule of free and open debate 
on motions. The exceptions all apply when there is a desire of the 
body to move on. The following motions are not debatable (that 
is, when the following motions are made and seconded, the chair 
must immediately call for a vote of the body without debate on the 
motion): 

Motion to adjourn. This motion, if passed, requires the body to 
immediately adjourn to its next regularly scheduled meeting. It 
requires a simple majority vote.

Motion to recess. This motion, if passed, requires the body to 
immediately take a recess. Normally, the chair determines the length 
of the recess which may be a few minutes or an hour. It requires a 
simple majority vote.

Motion to fix the time to adjourn. This motion, if passed, requires 
the body to adjourn the meeting at the specific time set in the 
motion. For example, the motion might be: “I move we adjourn this 
meeting at midnight.” It requires a simple majority vote.

The motion to amend. If a member wants to change a basic motion 
that is before the body, they would move to amend it. A motion 
to amend might be: “I move that we amend the motion to have a 
10-member committee.” A motion to amend takes the basic motion 
that is before the body and seeks to change it in some way.

The substitute motion. If a member wants to completely do away 
with the basic motion that is before the body, and put a new motion 
before the body, they would move a substitute motion. A substitute 
motion might be: “I move a substitute motion that we cancel the 
annual fundraiser this year.” 

“Motions to amend” and “substitute motions” are often confused, 
but they are quite different, and their effect (if passed) is quite 
different. A motion to amend seeks to retain the basic motion on the 
floor, but modify it in some way. A substitute motion seeks to throw 
out the basic motion on the floor, and substitute a new and different 
motion for it. The decision as to whether a motion is really a “motion 
to amend” or a “substitute motion” is left to the chair. So if a member 
makes what that member calls a “motion to amend,” but the chair 
determines that it is really a “substitute motion,” then the chair’s 
designation governs.

A “friendly amendment” is a practical parliamentary tool that is 
simple, informal, saves time and avoids bogging a meeting down 
with numerous formal motions. It works in the following way: In the 
discussion on a pending motion, it may appear that a change to the 
motion is desirable or may win support for the motion from some 
members. When that happens, a member who has the floor may 
simply say, “I want to suggest a friendly amendment to the motion.” 
The member suggests the friendly amendment, and if the maker and 
the person who seconded the motion pending on the floor accepts 
the friendly amendment, that now becomes the pending motion on 
the floor. If either the maker or the person who seconded rejects the 
proposed friendly amendment, then the proposer can formally move 
to amend.

Multiple Motions Before the Body
There can be up to three motions on the floor at the same time. 
The chair can reject a fourth motion until the chair has dealt 
with the three that are on the floor and has resolved them. This 
rule has practical value. More than three motions on the floor at 
any given time is confusing and unwieldy for almost everyone, 
including the chair. 

When there are two or three motions on the floor (after motions and 
seconds) at the same time, the vote should proceed first on the last 
motion that is made. For example, assume the first motion is a basic 
“motion to have a five-member committee to plan and put on our 
annual fundraiser.” During the discussion of this motion, a member 
might make a second motion to “amend the main motion to have a 
10-member committee, not a five-member committee to plan and 
put on our annual fundraiser.” And perhaps, during that discussion, a 
member makes yet a third motion as a “substitute motion that we not 
have an annual fundraiser this year.” The proper procedure would be 



5

Motion to close nominations. When choosing officers of the 
body (such as the chair), nominations are in order either from a 
nominating committee or from the floor of the body. A motion to 
close nominations effectively cuts off the right of the minority to 
nominate officers and it requires a two-thirds vote to pass.

Motion to object to the consideration of a question. Normally, such 
a motion is unnecessary since the objectionable item can be tabled or 
defeated straight up. However, when members of a body do not even 
want an item on the agenda to be considered, then such a motion is 
in order. It is not debatable, and it requires a two-thirds vote to pass.

Motion to suspend the rules. This motion is debatable, but requires 
a two-thirds vote to pass. If the body has its own rules of order, 
conduct or procedure, this motion allows the body to suspend the 
rules for a particular purpose. For example, the body (a private club) 
might have a rule prohibiting the attendance at meetings by non-club 
members. A motion to suspend the rules would be in order to allow 
a non-club member to attend a meeting of the club on a particular 
date or on a particular agenda item.

Counting Votes
The matter of counting votes starts simple, but can become 
complicated.

Usually, it’s pretty easy to determine whether a particular motion 
passed or whether it was defeated. If a simple majority vote is needed 
to pass a motion, then one vote more than 50 percent of the body is 
required. For example, in a five-member body, if the vote is three in 
favor and two opposed, the motion passes. If it is two in favor and 
three opposed, the motion is defeated.

If a two-thirds majority vote is needed to pass a motion, then how 
many affirmative votes are required? The simple rule of thumb is to 
count the “no” votes and double that count to determine how many 
“yes” votes are needed to pass a particular motion. For example, in 
a seven-member body, if two members vote “no” then the “yes” vote 
of at least four members is required to achieve a two-thirds majority 
vote to pass the motion. 

What about tie votes? In the event of a tie, the motion always fails since 
an affirmative vote is required to pass any motion. For example, in a 
five-member body, if the vote is two in favor and two opposed, with 
one member absent, the motion is defeated.

Vote counting starts to become complicated when members 
vote “abstain” or in the case of a written ballot, cast a blank (or 
unreadable) ballot. Do these votes count, and if so, how does one 
count them? The starting point is always to check the statutes.

In California, for example, for an action of a board of supervisors to 
be valid and binding, the action must be approved by a majority of the 
board. (California Government Code Section 25005.) Typically, this 
means three of the five members of the board must vote affirmatively 
in favor of the action. A vote of 2-1 would not be sufficient. A vote of 
3-0 with two abstentions would be sufficient. In general law cities in 

Motion to table. This motion, if passed, requires discussion of the 
agenda item to be halted and the agenda item to be placed on “hold.” 
The motion can contain a specific time in which the item can come 
back to the body. “I move we table this item until our regular meeting 
in October.” Or the motion can contain no specific time for the 
return of the item, in which case a motion to take the item off the 
table and bring it back to the body will have to be taken at a future 
meeting. A motion to table an item (or to bring it back to the body) 
requires a simple majority vote.

Motion to limit debate. The most common form of this motion is to 
say, “I move the previous question” or “I move the question” or “I call 
the question” or sometimes someone simply shouts out “question.” 
As a practical matter, when a member calls out one of these phrases, 
the chair can expedite matters by treating it as a “request” rather 
than as a formal motion. The chair can simply inquire of the body, 
“any further discussion?” If no one wishes to have further discussion, 
then the chair can go right to the pending motion that is on the floor. 
However, if even one person wishes to discuss the pending motion 
further, then at that point, the chair should treat the call for the 
“question” as a formal motion, and proceed to it. 

When a member of the body makes such a motion (“I move the 
previous question”), the member is really saying: “I’ve had enough 
debate. Let’s get on with the vote.” When such a motion is made, the 
chair should ask for a second, stop debate, and vote on the motion to 
limit debate. The motion to limit debate requires a two-thirds vote of 
the body. 

Note:  A motion to limit debate could include a time limit. For 
example: “I move we limit debate on this agenda item to 15 minutes.” 
Even in this format, the motion to limit debate requires a two-
thirds vote of the body. A similar motion is a motion to object to 
consideration of an item. This motion is not debatable, and if passed, 
precludes the body from even considering an item on the agenda. It 
also requires a two-thirds vote.

Majority and Super Majority Votes
In a democracy, a simple majority vote determines a question. A tie 
vote means the motion fails. So in a seven-member body, a vote of 
4-3 passes the motion. A vote of 3-3 with one abstention means the 
motion fails. If one member is absent and the vote is 3-3, the motion 
still fails.

All motions require a simple majority, but there are a few exceptions. 
The exceptions come up when the body is taking an action which 
effectively cuts off the ability of a minority of the body to take an 
action or discuss an item. These extraordinary motions require a 
two-thirds majority (a super majority) to pass:

Motion to limit debate. Whether a member says, “I move the 
previous question,” or “I move the question,” or “I call the question,” 
or “I move to limit debate,” it all amounts to an attempt to cut off the 
ability of the minority to discuss an item, and it requires a two-thirds 
vote to pass.



6

Now, exactly how does a member cast an “abstention” vote? 
Any time a member votes “abstain” or says, “I abstain,” that is an 
abstention. However, if a member votes “present” that is also treated 
as an abstention (the member is essentially saying, “Count me for 
purposes of a quorum, but my vote on the issue is abstain.”) In fact, 
any manifestation of intention to vote either “yes” or “no” on the 
pending motion may be treated by the chair as an abstention. If 
written ballots are cast, a blank or unreadable ballot is counted as an 
abstention as well. 

Can a member vote “absent” or “count me as absent?” Interesting 
question. The ruling on this is up to the chair. The better approach is 
for the chair to count this as if the member had left his/her chair and 
is actually “absent.” That, of course, affects the quorum. However, the 
chair may also treat this as a vote to abstain, particularly if the person 
does not actually leave the dais. 

The Motion to Reconsider
There is a special and unique motion that requires a bit of 
explanation all by itself; the motion to reconsider. A tenet of 
parliamentary procedure is finality. After vigorous discussion, debate 
and a vote, there must be some closure to the issue. And so, after a 
vote is taken, the matter is deemed closed, subject only to reopening 
if a proper motion to consider is made and passed.

A motion to reconsider requires a majority vote to pass like other 
garden-variety motions, but there are two special rules that apply 
only to the motion to reconsider. 

First, is the matter of timing. A motion to reconsider must be made 
at the meeting where the item was first voted upon. A motion to 
reconsider made at a later time is untimely. (The body, however, can 
always vote to suspend the rules and, by a two-thirds majority, allow 
a motion to reconsider to be made at another time.)

Second, a motion to reconsider may be made only by certain 
members of the body. Accordingly, a motion to reconsider may be 
made only by a member who voted in the majority on the original 
motion. If such a member has a change of heart, he or she may 
make the motion to reconsider (any other member of the body 
— including a member who voted in the minority on the original 
motion — may second the motion). If a member who voted in the 
minority seeks to make the motion to reconsider, it must be ruled 
out of order. The purpose of this rule is finality. If a member of 
minority could make a motion to reconsider, then the item could be 
brought back to the body again and again, which would defeat the 
purpose of finality. 

If the motion to reconsider passes, then the original matter is back 
before the body, and a new original motion is in order. The matter may 
be discussed and debated as if it were on the floor for the first time. 

California, as another example, resolutions or orders for the payment of 
money and all ordinances require a recorded vote of the total members 
of the city council. (California Government Code Section 36936.) Cities 
with charters may prescribe their own vote requirements. Local elected 
officials are always well-advised to consult with their local agency 
counsel on how state law may affect the vote count.

After consulting state statutes, step number two is to check the rules 
of the body. If the rules of the body say that you count votes of “those 
present” then you treat abstentions one way. However, if the rules of 
the body say that you count the votes of those “present and voting,” 
then you treat abstentions a different way. And if the rules of the 
body are silent on the subject, then the general rule of thumb (and 
default rule) is that you count all votes that are “present and voting.” 

Accordingly, under the “present and voting” system, you would Not 
count abstention votes on the motion. Members who abstain are 
counted for purposes of determining quorum (they are “present”), 
but you treat the abstention votes on the motion as if they did not 
exist (they are not “voting”). On the other hand, if the rules of the 
body specifically say that you count votes of those “present” then you 
Do count abstention votes both in establishing the quorum and on 
the motion. In this event, the abstention votes act just like “no” votes.

How does this work in practice?  
Here are a few examples.

Assume that a five-member city council is voting on a motion that 
requires a simple majority vote to pass, and assume further that the 
body has no specific rule on counting votes. Accordingly, the default 
rule kicks in and we count all votes of members that are “present and 
voting.” If the vote on the motion is 3-2, the motion passes. If the 
motion is 2-2 with one abstention, the motion fails. 

Assume a five-member city council voting on a motion that requires 
a two-thirds majority vote to pass, and further assume that the body 
has no specific rule on counting votes. Again, the default rule applies. 
If the vote is 3-2, the motion fails for lack of a two-thirds majority. If 
the vote is 4-1, the motion passes with a clear two-thirds majority. A 
vote of three “yes,” one “no” and one “abstain” also results in passage 
of the motion. Once again, the abstention is counted only for the 
purpose of determining quorum, but on the actual vote on the 
motion, it is as if the abstention vote never existed — so an effective 
3-1 vote is clearly a two-thirds majority vote. 

Now, change the scenario slightly. Assume the same five-member 
city council voting on a motion that requires a two-thirds majority 
vote to pass, but now assume that the body DoeS have a specific rule 
requiring a two-thirds vote of members “present.” Under this specific 
rule, we must count the members present not only for quorum but 
also for the motion. In this scenario, any abstention has the same 
force and effect as if it were a “no” vote. Accordingly, if the votes were 
three “yes,” one “no” and one “abstain,” then the motion fails. The 
abstention in this case is treated like a “no” vote and effective vote of 
3-2 is not enough to pass two-thirds majority muster. 



7

Appeal. If the chair makes a ruling that a member of the body 
disagrees with, that member may appeal the ruling of the chair. If the 
motion is seconded, and after debate, if it passes by a simple majority 
vote, then the ruling of the chair is deemed reversed.

Call for orders of the day. This is simply another way of saying, 
“return to the agenda.” If a member believes that the body has drifted 
from the agreed-upon agenda, such a call may be made. It does not 
require a vote, and when the chair discovers that the agenda has 
not been followed, the chair simply reminds the body to return to 
the agenda item properly before them. If the chair fails to do so, the 
chair’s determination may be appealed.

Withdraw a motion. During debate and discussion of a motion, 
the maker of the motion on the floor, at any time, may interrupt a 
speaker to withdraw his or her motion from the floor. The motion 
is immediately deemed withdrawn, although the chair may ask the 
person who seconded the motion if he or she wishes to make the 
motion, and any other member may make the motion if properly 
recognized.

Special Notes About Public Input
The rules outlined above will help make meetings very public-
friendly. But in addition, and particularly for the chair, it is wise to 
remember three special rules that apply to each agenda item:

Rule One: Tell the public what the body will be doing.

Rule Two: Keep the public informed while the body is doing it.

Rule Three: When the body has acted, tell the public what the 
body did.

Courtesy and Decorum
The rules of order are meant to create an atmosphere where the 
members of the body and the members of the public can attend to 
business efficiently, fairly and with full participation. At the same 
time, it is up to the chair and the members of the body to maintain 
common courtesy and decorum. Unless the setting is very informal, 
it is always best for only one person at a time to have the floor, and 
it is always best for every speaker to be first recognized by the chair 
before proceeding to speak.

The chair should always ensure that debate and discussion of an 
agenda item focuses on the item and the policy in question, not the 
personalities of the members of the body. Debate on policy is healthy, 
debate on personalities is not. The chair has the right to cut off 
discussion that is too personal, is too loud, or is too crude.

Debate and discussion should be focused, but free and open. In the 
interest of time, the chair may, however, limit the time allotted to 
speakers, including members of the body.

Can a member of the body interrupt the speaker? The general rule is 
“no.” There are, however, exceptions. A speaker may be interrupted 
for the following reasons:

Privilege. The proper interruption would be, “point of privilege.” 
The chair would then ask the interrupter to “state your point.” 
Appropriate points of privilege relate to anything that would 
interfere with the normal comfort of the meeting. For example, the 
room may be too hot or too cold, or a blowing fan might interfere 
with a person’s ability to hear.

Order. The proper interruption would be, “point of order.” Again, 
the chair would ask the interrupter to “state your point.” Appropriate 
points of order relate to anything that would not be considered 
appropriate conduct of the meeting. For example, if the chair moved 
on to a vote on a motion that permits debate without allowing that 
discussion or debate.



1400 K Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
(916) 658-8200   |   Fax (916) 658-8240

www.cacities.org

To order additional copies of this publication, call (916) 658-8200.

$10 

© 2011 League of California Cities. All rights reserved.

 Printed on recycled paper.











































































































Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting 

 

September 18, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. 

 

City of Fillmore City Hall, City Council Chambers 

250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015 

 

MINUTES 

Directors in Attendance 

 Director Gordon Kimball 

 Director Kelly Long 

 Director Ed McFadden 

 Director Candice Meneghin 

 Director Glen Pace 

 

Directors Absent 

 Director Carrie Broggie 

 

Staff Present 

 Kris Sofley, interim executive director 

 

Public Present 

 Tony Morgan, UWCD 

 Rachel Kimball Laenen, Fillmore and Piru Pumpers 

 

1. Call to Order 6:01p.m. 

Director Long called the meeting to order and led the group in the pledge of allegiance. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Public Comments 

Director Long asked if any members of the public wanted to address the Board, no public comments 

were offered.  

 

4. Approval of Agenda 

Motion 

 Motion to approve the agenda as is, Director McFadden; Second, Director Meneghin.  

 Voice vote: five ayes (Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin, Pace); none opposed; one 

 absent (Broggie).  Motion carries 5-0-1. 

 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

Page 2 

 
5. Director Announcements/Board Communications 

Director Meneghin reported that she was attending the Raparian Summit on October 17 

in Las Vegas and would be presenting a case study on the Santa Clara River.  Director 

Long asked Mr. Morgan if anyone had contacted UWCD about available water as she 

had spoken with someone who had mentioned water availability and Director Long had 

directed them to contact Mr. Morgan.  Mr. Morgan said he would reach out to the 

individual on behalf of Director Long. 

 

6. Interim Executive Director Update 

Information Item 

The Interim Executive Director provided a brief overview regarding research on website design 

and hosting, and explained how she was using Facebook for online outreach in the interim.  She 

also reported that she was continuing to contact insurance providers, including ACWA’s JPIA 

and CSDA’s SDRMA with inquiries about general liability insurance coverage and hoped to have 

more information at the next board meeting. 

 

7. Update on Funding Sources 

Information Item 

Mr. Morgan reported that he was having internal discussion with UWCD regarding in-kind 

services and had discussed the principals of an agreement with the General Manager.  With the 

GM’s approval, Mr. Morgan said he would craft a formal agreement for the two agencies (FPB 

GSA and UWCD) covering services, personnel and clarifying expectations using in-kind 

services. 

 

Director Long said that she had great news on the County side, and had drafted a letter for a cash 

advance of $51,300 and repayment with interest before June 30, 2018.  She added that in 

accordance with 14.3 of the Joint Powers Authority agreement, the loan would be repaid at 

prevailing LAIF interest rates.  The County’s Director of Finance was drafting the agreement and 

defining the percentage of interest and would then run the agreement through legal and 

Watershed Protection and would provide a copy for review to Mr. Morgan at UWCD and to the 

list of other agencies involved.  She believed the loan agreement would be before the County 

Board of Supervisors for approval on September 26.  Director Long thanked Martín Hernandez 

for his help in getting this started. 

 

8. Discussion of Legal Services 

Information 

Mr. Morgan reported that, as addressed at the last Board meeting, a draft Request for Proposal 

(RFP) was included in the agenda packet.  He explained that the RFP was a merger of three different 

RFPs that he repackaged after removing all the fluff and filler.  The RFP was also broken out in 

General Legal Counsel and Special Council requirements.   

 

Director McFadden asked if the list of potential law firms had been targeted.  Ms. Sofley said that 

it was targeted and explained how she was using the list of law firms participating in the ACWA 

legal issues committee and DWR’s list of attorneys, and then eliminated those outside the area of 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

Page 3 

 
Ventura, Santa Barbara, Los Angeles and Bakersfield as the travel/time costs for firms outside the 

area would be prohibitive. 

 

Mr. Morgan said he thought many local firms could be conflicted for General Counsel work due to 

involvement with municipalities and other water agencies, but that it may not be an issue in the 

Fillmore and Piru area. 

 

Director Long added that potential conflicts could be addressed as part of the Board’s evaluation 

process. 

 

Director McFadden reminded the Board that this didn’t require a high powered lawyer and Mr. 

Morgan agreed that the GSA didn’t require an experienced water lawyer, but rather someone 

familiar the Brown Act and public agency guidelines. 

 

Director Kimball asked to focus locally by reaching out to lawyers within the Santa Paula or 

Fillmore Chamber of Commerce. 

 

Mr. Morgan said the deadline for submissions of proposals was October 23 and that at the October 

30 Board meeting the Board could evaluate whether to develop an ad hoc committee to review the 

submissions or outline the process for selection. 

 

Director Long suggested if any Board members know of lawyers interested in being General 

Counsel, they should give the names to Ms. Sofley.  Then the Board can select the top three 

candidates from the submissions and ask those top choice law firms to make formal presentations 

to the Board at its November 16 meeting.  Director Long was hoping General Counsel could be 

approved by December. 

 

Director McFadden and Director Meneghin volunteered to be the ad hoc committee reviewing legal 

services proposals, which they would receive at the October 30 Board meeting.  The two of them 

will notify the board of the top candidates who will be invited to make a presentation to the Board, 

followed by a 30 minute question and answer period. 

 

Mr. Morgan added that at the end of the November 16 meeting, the Board could make a decision 

regarding the leading candidate and then open negotiations regarding the terms of the contract, with 

an eye towards approving the contract and rates at the December 19 Board meeting. 

 

 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 

a. Approval of Minutes 

Motion to approve the Minutes from the Board Meeting of August 28, 2017 and the 

Special Board Meeting of September 7, 2017, Director McFadden; Second, Director 

Pace.  Roll call vote: five ayes (Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin and Pace); none 

opposed; one absent (Broggie).  Motion carries 5-0-1. 

 

  



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

Page 4 

 

 
10.  ACTION ITEMS 

a. Application for General Liability Insurance 

Motion 

Motion to approve an application requesting a quote from the CalAssociation of Nonprofits 

Insurance Service for General Liability and Directors & Officers coverage for the Fillmore 

and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency, Director McFadden; Second, 

Director Meneghin.  Voice vote: five ayes (Kimball, Long McFadden, Meneghin, and 

Pace); none opposed; one absent (Broggie).  Motion carries 5-0-1. 

 

b. Approval of Resolution 2017-02  and Adoption of Conflict of Interest Code 

Motion 

Motion to approve and adopt Resolution 2017-02, approving and adopting the draft 

Conflict of Interest Code on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 

Sustainability Agency, as presented, Director Kimball; Second, Director Pace.  Voice vote: 

five ayes (Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin and Pace); none opposed; one absent 

(Broggie).  Motion carries 5-0-1. 

 

c. Establishing a Commercial Checking Account for FPBGSA 

Motion 
Director McFadden said that as the Board’s Secretary/Treasurer he would be the signatory 

on the FPB GSA’s checking account but suggested that an accounting policy outlining the 

process for accounting needed to be in place.  He said that two signatures should be on 

record and that a policy for accounting needed to be addressed 

 

Director Kimball said it was a big stumbling block and especially if the GSA was looking 

to apply as a non-profit 501(c)(3) tax exempt organization.  He also mentioned that 

Fillmore Pumpers had an account with Union Bank in Santa Paula. 

 

The Board decided that more research and information regarding crafting and adopting an 

accounting policy was required. 

 

d. Possible Future Action Items 

Motion 
The Board reviewed a number of action items for consideration at future Board meetings: 

 Establishing a website for the FPB GSA would be addressed at the October 30 

Board meeting; 

 Accounting Procedures – Chair and Vice Chair would serve as signatories 

(Director Pace suggested all three member Directors should be approved for 

signing) on GSA’s checking account; the full Board would approve expenditures 

and address development of an accounting policy at the October 30 Board meeting; 

 Directors Pace and Long thought basic and common language bylaws could be 

created and either amended or added to as necessary as the GSA grows and 

Director Pace didn’t want to spend a fortune on lawyers to create bylaws.  Mr. 

Morgan said that Russ McLaughlin may have Bylaws for GSA and Director 

Kimball said he would ask Mr. McLaughlin for copies, if available.  Creating basic 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

Page 5 

 
bylaws would be revisited at the December 19 Board meeting when hopefully 

Legal Counsel would be on board; 

 Director Long thought November and December were busy times and Mr. Morgan 

stated that there was time to deal with this in December.  Director McFadden 

suggested a “twofer” meeting in December once Legal Counsel was on board and 

the GSA had money in the bank. Directors agreed that the meetings should be local 

and suggested Veteran’s Hall.  Director McFadden suggested between the 4th and 

8t of December and Director Kimball and Director Pace thought morning 

meetings, between 9am and 12noon, would be best.  They also suggested running 

public notice ads in the Santa Paul Times and Fillmore Gazette, as well as asking 

the Farm Bureau, CoLAB and VCAA to share the meeting dates with their 

members and promote on their websites, Facebook pages and publications.  

Discussion of proposed fee schedule based on an actual budget and scheduling 

Town Hall meetings would be done at the December 19 Board meeting; 

 Timeline and schedules for Groundwater Sustainability Plan; dates for Town Hall 

meeting to review FPB GSA Budgets and fee schedule; and dates for Focus Groups 

regarding GSA Mapping would all be discussed at one meeting in early December. 

 

Motion to calendar the topics as discussed including outreach and messaging on behalf of 

the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency, Director McFadden; 

Second Director Pace.  Voice vote: five ayes (Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin and 

Pace); none opposed; one absent (Broggie).  Motion carries 5-0-1 

 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT  8:02 p.m. 

The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting on Monday, October 30, 2017 or call 

of the Chair. 

 

I certify that the above are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Board of Directors meeting 

of September 18, 2017. 

 

Attest: _________________________________________________ 

 Director Kelly Long, Chair 

 

 

Attest:  __________________________________________________ 

 Kris Sofley, Interim Executive Director  



FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  

Item No.  9A 

DATE:  October 30, 2017 

TO:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT:   Ventura County Cash Advance Agreement 

SUMMARY 

As discussed at the Special Board Meeting of September 7, 2017, the FPBGSA has a few options to pursue 

for possible funding, one of which Director Long was pursuing with the County of Ventura regarding 

possible funding in the amount of $51,300.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Board to consider approving and signing the Ventura County Cash Advance Agreement.   

BACKGROUND 

Director Long secured a cash advance loan from the County of Ventura in the amount of $51,300, to 
provide proportional funding for the FPBGSA’s basic operational start-up costs.  The FPBGSA will repay 
the advance in full, with interest at the prevailing Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) rate, by June 30, 
2018. 

As covered in Article 14 of the Joint Powers of Authority agreement between the County of Ventura, the 
City of Fillmore and United Water Conservation District,  

14.2 For the purpose of funding the expenses and ongoing operations of the Agency, the Board 
of Directors shall maintain a funding account in connection with the annual budget process.  The 
Board of Directors may fund the Agency as provided in Chapter 8 of SGMA, commencing with 
section 10730 of the Water Code.  As authorized by Government Code Section 6504, the Members 
may make initial contributions, payments and advances for operating the Agency, all of which 
shall be repaid to the Members pursuant to, and with accrued interest, as set forth in Section 14.3 
herein.  The Members agree that the Agency, and not the Members, have the sole responsibility 
to develop and implement a funding program to fiscally and fully implement the Agency’s SMGA 
compliance efforts and ongoing operations. 

14.3     Return of Contributions.   In accordance  with Government  Code section 6512.1, 

repayment or return to the Members of all or any part of any contributions made by Members 

and any revenues by the Agency  may be directed by the Board of Directors at such time 

and upon such terms as the Board of Directors may decide; provided that (1) any distributions 

shall be made in proportion to the contributions  paid by each Member to the Agency, and (2) 

any capital contribution   paid  by  a  Member  voluntarily,  and  without  obligation  to  make  

such  capital contribution pursuant to Section 14.2, shall be returned to the contributing 

Member, together with accrued interest at the annual rate published  as the yield of the 

Local Agency Investment Fund administered by the California State Treasurer, before any 



FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  
Item No.  9A 
DATE: October 30, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

other return of contributions to the Members is made.  The Agency shall hold title to all funds 

and property acquired by the Agency during the term of this Agreement. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The fiscal impact of this agreement is the full loan amount of $51,300 plus interest at 
 the prevailing Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) rate, by June 30, 2018. 

 

 

Proposed Motion: 

“Motion to approve and sign a Cash Advance Agreement with the County of Ventura on behalf of the 

Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency,” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote: 

Director Broggie: Director Kimball: Director Long:  Director McFadden:  

Director Meneghin: Director Pace 

 

 

















FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  

Item No.  9B 

DATE:  October 30, 2017 

TO:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT:   Website design and hosting through County of Ventura Information Technology 

Services Department 

SUMMARY 

As discussed at the September 18, 2017 FPB GSA Board meeting, Director Long believed the County’s IT 

Services Department could create, build and host a website for the GSA.  She reached out to Mr. DeLa 

Esprielle, who provided an estimate of costs and hosting services.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Board to consider approving the quote from County of Ventura’s Information Technology Services 
Department and hiring them to design and build a website for the FPB GSA, and to approve contracting 
with WP Hosting Spot as serve as the website’s host for the next year.   

BACKGROUND 

Director Long recommended reaching out to the county’s IT Services Department to find out what it would 

charge for creating a new website for the Fillmore and Piru Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

based on a similar look, feel and functionality to the Upper Ventura River Groundwater Sustainability 

Agency’s website.  The existing site (https://uvrgroundwater.org/) design will be used as a guideline to 

build the new FPB GSA’s website.  IT personnel will work with resources at the FPB GSA’s office to obtain 

content, graphics and a logo for the new website.  The new site will be developed utilizing the WordPress 

content management platform which makes it easy for the business to maintain future content 

themselves at a significant cost savings.  The IT Services Department is also recommending that the new 

website be hosted at cloud-based website hosting provider wphostingspot.com.  IT Services has vetted 

this cloud hosting provider and has found through its experience that wphostingspot.com provides 

excellent performance, support, uptime, security, and value. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The fiscal impact of this agreement is the cost of building the site ($1,800) plus an annual 
hosting fee of $183.60 (based on a monthly rate of $15.30). 

Proposed Motion:  “Motion to approve the quote of $1983.60 and hire Ventura County IT Services 

Department to build a website and hire wphostingspot.com to host the site for a year on behalf of the 

Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency as presented,” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote:  Director Broggie:  Director Kimball: Director Long: 

 Director McFadden:                         Director Meneghin: Director Pace 

https://uvrgroundwater.org/


MIKE PETTIT 

Chief Information Officer 
 
 

RODNEY LANTHIER 
Assistant Chief Information Officer 
 

TERRY THEOBALD 
Assistant Chief Information Officer 
Health Care Agency IT Director 
 

ED ALTHOF 
Deputy Chief Information Officer 
Enterprise Services 
 

ROBERT CONNAL 
Deputy Chief Information Officer 
Network Services 
 

BILL DE LA ESPRIELLA 
Deputy Chief Information Officer 
Application Services 
 

KIM PORTER 
Deputy Chief Information Officer 
Technical Services 
 

RICK YOUNG 
Deputy Chief Information Officer 
Fiscal Officer 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

   

 

1957A Eastman Avenue, Ventura, California 93003 
(805) 654-2720 -  FAX: (805) 654-3394 

October 12, 2017 
 
Kelly Long 
Ventura County Supervisor – District 3 
1203 Flynn Rd, Suite 220 
Camarillo, CA 93012  
 

 

Re: Proposal for the creation of the Fillmore and Piru Basin Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency website 

 
Dear Supervisor Long, 

 

This document is intended to communicate IT Services proposed costs 
associated with the creation of the Fillmore and Piru Basin Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency website. 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES, COSTS AND PROFESSIONAL FEES 
 
The scope of this project is to create a new website for the Fillmore and Piru Basin Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency with a similar look and feel as the Upper Ventura River Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency website.  The existing site (https://uvrgroundwater.org/) design will be used as a guideline to build 
the new Fillmore and Piru Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency website.  Any needed taxonomy and 
content will need to be defined by the Fillmore and Piru Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency personnel.  
IT personnel will work with resources at the Fillmore and Piru Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s 
office to obtain content, graphics and a logo for the new website.  The new site will be developed utilizing the 
WordPress content management platform which makes it easy for the business to maintain future content 
themselves at a significant cost savings.  Alternatively, IT Services would be happy to maintain future 
content, if desired, on a time and material or maintenance contract basis.  Lastly, it is proposed that the new 
website be hosted at cloud-based website hosting provider WPHostingSpot.com.  IT Services has vetted this 
cloud hosting provider and has found through our experience that WPHostingSpot.com provides excellent 
performance, support, uptime, security, and value. 
 
Following are the one-time web site development costs and the monthly hosting costs for the proposed site: 

 
One Time Cost Estimates 
 

Description Hours Cost 

Design and Development 18 $1,620.00 

Quality Assurance and Testing 2 $180.00 

 Total: $1,800.00 

 
Monthly Re-occurring Costs 
 

Description Frequency Cost 

Web Application Host (WPHostingSpot.com) Monthly* $15.30 

*Billed annually Annual Total: $183.60 

 
 

https://uvrgroundwater.org/


1957A Eastman Avenue, Ventura, California 93003 
(805) 654-2720 -  FAX: (805) 654-3394 

 
 
 
The cost estimates listed above are based upon the project goals identified in your email request and from 
our review of the Upper Ventura River Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s existing website that you 
provided as an example. The prices are quoted at a ‘not to exceed’ cost for the scope identified.  If the effort 
is less than the prices quoted we will charge the actual cost.   If new requirements are added during the 
project that significantly increase the scope of work, further discussions may be necessary to revise this 
estimate.  Additional hours, if needed, have a cost range between $90.00 per hour and up to $108.75 per 
hour depending on the level and type of technical resource required. 

 
BENEFITS 

IT Services can provide experienced, professional technology staff for the creation of the Fillmore and Piru 
Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency website. IT Services has a proven track record of developing easy 
to use and highly capable mobile applications and web solutions. We look forward to the opportunity of 
working with you and the FPBGSA on this website project. 

 
 
If you have any questions or need any additional information please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
Thanks, 
 
 
 
Bill De La Espriella 
Deputy Chief Information Officer 
Information Technology Services Department 
County of Ventura 
800 S. Victoria Ave L1100 
Ventura, CA 93009 
Office: (805) 654-7647 
Email: bill.delaespriella@ventura.org 

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:bill.delaespriella@ventura.org


 

FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  

Item No.  9C 

DATE:  October 30, 2017 

TO:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT:   Revised Resolution 2017-02 Conflict of Interest Code (Motion) 

SUMMARY 

The Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (“JPA Agreement”) requires that the Agency adopt a local 

Conflict of Interest (COI) Code pursuant to the schedule and provisions described below. Examples of COIs 

from other Groundwater Sustainability Agencies were presented for the Board’s review and consideration 

at the August 28, 2017 Board meeting.  At that time, the Board directed the interim executive director to 

draft a Conflict of Interest Code for the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency based 

on the Conflict of Interest Code adopted by the Mound Basin GSA.  Upon submitting the adopted Conflict 

of Interest Code to the County Board of Supervisors, the COI was rejected due to minor language issues.   

Section 2 has been amended as follows:   

“The Chair, Vice-Chair, Members of the Board of Directors, Alternate Directors, the Executive 

 Director, Agency General Counsel, and Treasurer of the Agency shall file a Form 700 statement 

 pursuant to State law (Government Code § 87500(k)) with the County of Ventura Board of 

 Supervisors’ Clerk of the Board.” 

Attachment C - Disclosure Categories – Category 4 was amended to read: 

“A designated employee in this category must report all interests in real property within  the 

jurisdiction of the Agency.” RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Approve the Revised Resolution 2017-02  and Adopt the amended Conflict of Interest Code presented 

with this staff report.  

BACKGROUND 

Section 8.5 of the JPA Agreement requires the Board of Directors to adopt a local conflict of interest code 

pursuant to the provisions of the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code sections 81000, et seq.) 

at the first meeting following the appointment of the Stakeholder Directors. 

The Interim Executive Director has revised the COI code (see attachment) based on the COI code approved 

by Mound Basin GSA and with direction from UWCD legal counsel, as an appropriate COI Code for this 

Agency. 

Additionally, the Board of Directors must file a Form 700 Statement of Economic Interests. 

 



 

FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 
Item No 9C 
Date: October 30, 2017 
Page 2 

FISCAL SUMMARY 

There was no fiscal impact from this item.   

 

Proposed Motion: 

“Motion to approve and adopt the revised Resolution 2017-02 Conflict of Interest Code on behalf of the 

Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency as presented,” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote: 

Director Broggie: Director Kimball: Director Long:  Director McFadden:  

Director Meneghin: Director Pace 



FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS 

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILILTY AGENCY 

 

AMENDED RESOLUTION 2017-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS  

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY (AGENCY) ADOPTING A  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, Government Code §81000 et seq. requires every state and 

 local government agency to adopt and promulgate a Conflict of Interest Code 

 pursuant to Government Code §87300; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”) has adopted a regulation which 

 contains terms of a standard model Conflict of Interest Code (2 California Code of 

 Regulations §18730), which is attached hereto as Attachment A, and will be amended to 

 conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act after public notice and hearing 

 conducted by the FPPC; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the standard model Conflict of Interest Code will help ensure compliance by the 

 Agency with the Political Reform Act. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Fillmore and Piru Basins 

 Groundwater Sustainability Agency does hereby resolve, find, determine and order as 

 follows: 

 

Section 1: The terms of the standard model Conflict of Interest Code adopted pursuant to 

2 California Code of Regulations §18730, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment 

A, and any amendments to it duly adopted by the FPPC is hereby adopted and incorporated 

by reference as the Conflict of Interest Code for the Agency.  This standard model Conflict 

of Interest Code and Attachments B, C, and D to this Resolution, in which members and 

employees are designated and disclosure categories are set forth and explained, shall 

constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the Agency. 

 

 Section 2: Employees designated in Attachment D hereto shall file statements of economic 

 interests (Form 700) with the Agency Secretary pursuant to this Resolution.  The Chair, 

 Vice-Chair, Members of the Board of Directors, Alternate Directors, the Executive Director, 

 Agency General Counsel, and Treasurer of the Agency shall file a Form 700 statement 

 pursuant to State law (Government Code § 87500(k)) with the County of Ventura Board of 

 Supervisors’ Clerk of the Board.  The Filllmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability 

 Agency Secretary shall be responsible for the retention of a copy of all statements of 

 economic interests and make them available for public inspection and reproduction 

 (Government Code §81008). 

 

 Section 3:  The Agency shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution and cause the 

 filing of said Conflict of Interest Code in the manner prescribed by law. 



 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AMENDED AND ADOPTED this 30th day of October, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

  

Kelly Long, Board Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

  Kris Sofley 

  Interim Executive Director 

 

 

 

  



 

ATTACHMENT A 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

CODE 

FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER 

SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 
TITLE 2. 

ADMINISTRATION 

DIVISION 6. FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES 

COMMISSION CHAPTER 7. CONFLICTS OF 

INTEREST 

 
ARTICLE 2. 

DISCLOSURE 

 
2 CCR §18730 

 
§18730. Provisions of Conflict of Interest Codes 

 
(a) Incorporation by reference of the terms of this regulation along with the designation 

of employees and the formulation of disclosure categories in the Attachments referred 

to below constitute the adoption and promulgation of a conflict of interest code within 

the meaning of Government Code Section §87300 or the amendment of a conflict of 

interest code within the meaning of Government Code Section §87307 if the terms of 

this regulation are substituted for terms of a conflict of interest code already in effect. 

A code so amended or adopted and promulgated requires the reporting of reportable 

items in a manner substantially equivalent to the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 

7 of the Political Reform Act, Government Code Sections §81000, et seq. The 

requirements of a conflict of interest code are in addition to other requirements of the 

Political Reform Act, such as the general prohibition against conflicts of interest 

contained in Government 

Code Section §87100, and to other state or local laws pertaining to conflicts of interest. 

 
(b) The terms of a conflict of interest code amended or adopted and promulgated 

pursuant to this regulation are as follows: 
 

 

(1) Section 1. Definitions. 

 
The definitions contained in the Political Reform Act of 1974, regulations of the 

Fair Political Practices Commission (2 Cal. of Regs. Sections §18110, et seq.), 

and any amendments to the Act or regulations, are incorporated by reference into 

this conflict of interest code. 

 
  



 

(2) Section 2. Designated Employees. 

 
The persons holding positions listed in Attachment D are designated employees. It 

has been determined that these persons make or participate in the making of 

decisions which may foreseeably have a material effect on financial interests. 

 

(3) Section 3. Disclosure Categories. 

This code does not establish any disclosure obligation for those designated employees 

who are also specified in Government Code Section §87200 if they are designated in 

this code in that same capacity or if the geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the 

same as or is wholly included within the jurisdiction in which those persons must 

report their economic interests pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 7 of the Political 

Reform Act, Government Code Sections §87200, et seq. 

 
In addition, this code does not establish any disclosure obligation for any designated 

employees who are designated in a conflict of interest code for another agency, if all 

of the following apply: 

 
(A) The geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as or is wholly included 

within the jurisdiction of the other agency; 

 
(B) The disclosure assigned in the code of the other agency is the same as that 

required under Article 2 of Chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Government 

Code section §87200; and 
 

(C) The filing officer is the same for both agencies.
1
 

Such persons are covered by this code for disqualification purposes only. With 

respect to all other designated employees, the disclosure categories set forth in 

Attachment C specify which kinds of economic interests are reportable. Such a 

designated employee shall disclose in his or her statement of economic interests 

those economic interests he or she has which are of the kind described in the 

disclosure categories to which he or she is assigned in Attachment D. It has been 

determined that the economic interests set forth in a designated employee's 

disclosure categories are the kinds of economic interests which he or she 

foreseeably can affect materially through the conduct of his or her office. 

 
(4) Section 4. Statements of Economic Interests: Place of Filing. 

 
The code reviewing body shall instruct all designated employees within its code to 

file statements of economic interests with the agency or with the code reviewing 

body, as provided by the code reviewing body in the agency's conflict of interest 

code.
2

 

 
(5) Section 5. Statements of Economic Interests: Time of Filing. 

 
(A) Initial Statements. All designated employees employed by the agency on the 

effective date of this code, as originally adopted, promulgated and approved by 



 

the code reviewing body, shall file statements within 30 days after the effective 

date of this code. Thereafter, each person already in a position when it is 

designated by an amendment to this code shall file an initial statement within 30 

days after the effective date of the amendment. 

 
 
 

(B) Assuming Office Statements. All persons assuming designated positions after the 

effective date of this code shall file statements within 30 days after assuming the 

designated positions, or if subject to State Senate confirmation, 30 days after being 

nominated or appointed. 

 
(C) Annual Statements. All designated employees shall file statements no later than 

April 1. 

 
(D) Leaving Office Statements. All persons who leave designated positions shall file 

statements within 30 days after leaving office. 
 

 

(E) Reports for military service as defined in the Service member’s Civil Relief Act, 

the deadline for the annual statement of economic interests is 30 days following 

his or her return to office, provided the person, or someone authorized to 

represent the person's interests, notifies the filing officer in writing prior to the 

applicable filing deadline that he or she is subject to that federal statute and is 

unable to meet the applicable deadline, and provides the filing officer verification 

of his or her military status. 

 
(5.5) Section 5.5. Statements for Persons Who Resign Prior to Assuming Office. 

 
Any person who resigns within 12 months of initial appointment, or within 30 

days of the date of notice provided by the filing officer to file an assuming office 

statement, is not deemed to have assumed office or left office, provided he or she 

did not make or participate in the making of, or use his or her position to 

influence any decision and did not receive or become entitled to receive any form 

of payment as a result of his or her appointment. Such persons shall not file either 

an assuming or leaving office statement. 
 

(A) Any person who resigns a position within 30 days of the date of a notice from 

the filing officer shall do both of the following: 
 

 

(1) File a written resignation with the appointing power; and 
 
 

(2) File a written statement with the filing officer declaring under penalty of 

perjury that during the period between appointment and resignation he or 

she did not make, participate in the making, or use the position to 

influence any decision of the agency or receive, or become entitled to 



 

receive, any form of payment by virtue of being appointed to the position. 
 

 

(6) Section 6. Contents of and Period Covered by Statements of Economic Interests.  

(A) Contents of Initial Statements. 

Initial statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in 

real property and business positions held on the effective date of the code 

and income received during the 12 months prior to the effective date of 

the code. 

 
(B) Contents of Assuming Office Statements. 

 
Assuming office statements shall disclose any reportable investments, 

interests in real property and business positions held on the date of assuming 

office or, if subject to State Senate confirmation or appointment, on the date 

of nomination, and income received during the 12 months prior to the date of 

assuming office or the date of being appointed or nominated, respectively. 

 
(C) Contents of Annual Statements. 

 
Annual statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in real 

property, income and business positions held or received during the previous 

calendar year provided, however, that the period covered by an employee's 

first annual statement shall begin on the effective date of the code or the date 

of assuming office whichever is later. 

 
(D) Contents of Leaving Office Statements. 

 
Leaving office statements shall disclose reportable investments, interests in 

real property, income and business positions held or received during the 

period between the closing date of the last statement filed and the date of 

leaving office. 

 
(7) Section 7. Manner of Reporting. 

 
Statements of economic interests shall be made on forms prescribed by the Fair 

Political Practices Commission and supplied by the agency, and shall contain the 

following information: 

 
(A) Investment and Real Property Disclosure. 

 
When an investment or an interest in real property

3 
is required to be reported,

4
 

the statement shall contain the following: 

 
1.   A statement of the nature of the investment or interest; 

 



 

2.   The name of the business entity in which each investment is held, and a 

general description of the business activity in which the business entity is 

engaged; 

 
3.   The address or other precise location of the real property; 

 

4.   A statement whether the fair market value of the investment or interest in 

real property exceeds one thousand dollars ($1,000), exceeds ten thousand 

dollars ($10,000), or exceeds one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000). 

 
(B) Personal Income Disclosure. When personal income is required to be 

reported,
5 

the statement shall contain: 

 
1.   The name and address of each source of income aggregating two hundred 

fifty dollars ($250) or more in value, or fifty dollars ($50) or more in 

value if the income was a gift, and a general description of the business 

activity, if any, of each source; 

 
2.   A statement whether the aggregate value of income from each source, or 

in the case of a loan, the highest amount owed to each source, was one 

thousand dollars ($1,000) or less, greater than one thousand dollars 

($1,000), greater than ten thousand dollars ($10,000); 

 
3.   A description of the consideration, if any, for which the income was 

received; 
 

 

4.   In the case of a gift, the name, address and business activity of the donor 

and any intermediary through which the gift was made; a description of 

the gift; the amount or value of the gift; and the date on which the gift was 

received; 
 

 

5.   In the case of a loan, the annual interest rate and the security, if any, given 

for the loan and the term of the loan. 

 
(C) Business Entity Income Disclosure. When income of a business entity, 

including income of a sole proprietorship, is required to be reported,
6 

the 

statement shall contain: 

 
1.   The name, address, and a general description of the business activity of 

the business entity; 

 
2.   The name of every person from whom the business entity received 

payments if the filer's pro rata share of gross receipts from such person 

was equal to or greater than ten thousand dollars ($10,000). 

 

 

 



 

(D) Business Position Disclosure. 

 
When business positions are required to be reported, a designated employee 

shall list the name and address of each business entity in which he or she is a 

director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or in which he or she holds any 

position of management, a description of the business activity in which the 

business entity is engaged, and the designated employee's position with the 

business entity. 

 
(E) Acquisition or Disposal during Reporting Period. 

In the case of an annual or leaving office statement, if an investment or an 

interest in real property was partially or wholly acquired or disposed of during 

the period covered by the statement, the statement shall contain the date of 

acquisition or disposal. 

 
(8) Section 8. Prohibition on Receipt of Honoraria. 

 
(A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of a 

state or local government agency, shall accept any honorarium from any source, 

if the member or employee would be required to report the receipt of income or 

gifts from that source on his or her statement of economic interests. This section 

shall not apply to any part-time member of the governing board of any public 

institution of higher education, unless the member is also an elected official. 

 
Subdivisions (a), (b), and (c) of Government Code Section §89501 shall apply to the 

prohibitions in this section. 

 
This Section shall not limit or prohibit payments, advances, or reimbursements for travel 

and related lodging and subsistence authorized by Government Code Section §89506. 

 
(8.1) Section 8.1. Prohibition on Receipt of Gifts in Excess of $290. 

 
(A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of the 

state or local government agency, shall accept gifts with a total value of more 

than $290 in a calendar year from any single source, if the member or employee 

would be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that source on 

his or her statement of economic interests. This section shall not apply to any 

part-time member of the governing board of any public institution of higher 

education, unless the member is also an elected official. 

 
Subdivisions (e), (f), and (g) of Government Code Section §89503 shall apply to the 

prohibitions in this Section. 

 
(8.2) Section 8.2. Loans to Public Officials. 

 
(A) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from this date 

of his or her election to office through the date that he or she vacates office, 



 

receive a personal loan from any officer, employee, member or consultant of 

the state or local government agency in which the elected officer holds office 

over which the elected officer’s agency has direction and control. 

 

(B) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant 

to subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the 

Constitution shall, while he or she holds office, receive a personal loan from 

any officer, employee, member, or consultant of the state or local government 

agency in which the public official holds office or over which the public 

official’s agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to 

loans made to a public official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or 

manual. 

 
(C) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of 

his or her election to office through the date that he or she vacates office, 

receive a personal loan from any person who has a contract with the state or 

local government agency to which that elected officer has been elected or over 

which that elected officer’s agency has direction and control. This subdivision 

shall not apply to loans made by banks or other financial institutions or to any 

indebtedness created as part of a retail installment or credit card transaction, if 

the loan is made or the indebtedness created in the lender’s regular course of 

business on terms available to members of the public without regard to the 

elected officer’s official status. 
 

 

(D) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant 

to subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the 

Constitution shall, while he or she holds office, receive a personal loan from 

any person who has a contract with the state or local government agency to 

which that elected officer has been elected or over which that elected officer's 

agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans 

made by banks or other financial institutions or to any indebtedness created as 

part of a retail installment or credit card transaction, if the loan is made or the 

indebtedness created in the lender's regular course of business on terms 

available to members of the public without regard to the elected officer's 

official status. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made to a public 

official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or manual. 
 

 

(E) This section shall not apply to the following: 

 
1.   Loans made to the campaign committee of an elected officer or candidate 

for elective office. 

 
2.   Loans made by a public official's spouse, child, parent, grandparent, 

grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, 

nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or the spouse of any such 

persons, provided that the person making the loan is not acting as an agent 

or intermediary for any person not otherwise exempted under this section. 
 



 

 

3.   Loans from a person which, in the aggregate, do not exceed two hundred 

fifty dollars ($250) at any given time. 
 

4.   Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998. 

(8.3) Section 8.3. Loan Terms. 

(A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B) No elected officer of a state or local 

government agency shall, from the date of his or her election to office through 

the date he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan of five hundred 

dollars ($500) or more, except when the loan is in writing and clearly states 

the terms of the loan, including the parties to the loan agreement, date of the 

loan, amount of the loan, term of the loan, date or dates when payments shall 

be due on the loan and the amount of the payments, and the rate of interest 

paid on the loan. 

 
(B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans: 

 

 

1.   Loans made to the campaign committee of the elected officer. 

 
2.   Loans made to the elected officer by his or her spouse, child, parent, 

grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, 

sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or the spouse of 

any such person, provided that the person making the loan is not acting as 

an agent or intermediary for any person not otherwise exempted under this 

section. 

 
3.   Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998. 

 
(C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provision of 

Title 9 of the Government Code. 

(8.4) Section 8.4. Personal Loans. 

(A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B), a personal loan received by any 

designated employee shall become a gift to the designated employee for the 

purposes of this section in the following circumstances: 

 
1.   If the loan has a defined date or dates for repayment, when the statute of 

limitations for filing an action for default has expired. 

 
2.   If the loan has no defined date or dates for repayment, when one year has 

elapsed from the later of the following: 

 
a.   The date the loan was made. 

 
b.   The date the last payment of $100 or more was made on the loan. 



 

c.   The date upon which the debtor has made payments on the loan 

aggregating to less than two hundred fifty ($250) during the previous 

12 months. 

 
(B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans: 

 
1.   A loan made to the campaign committee of an elected officer or a 

candidate for elective office. 

 
2.   A loan that would otherwise not be a gift as defined in this title. 

 
3.   A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under subdivision (A), 

but on which the creditor has taken reasonable action to collect the balance 

due. 

 
4.   A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under subdivision (A), 

but on which the creditor, based on reasonable business considerations, 

has not undertaken collection action. Except in a criminal action, a 

creditor who claims that a loan is not a gift on the basis of this paragraph 

has the burden of proving that the decision for not taking collection action 

was based on reasonable business considerations. 
 

 

5.   A loan made to a debtor who has filed for bankruptcy and the loan is 

ultimately discharged in bankruptcy. 

 
(C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provisions of 

Title 9 of the Government Code. 

(9) Section 9. Disqualification. 

No designated employee shall make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to 

use his or her official position to influence the making of any governmental decision 

which he or she knows or has reason to know will have a reasonably foreseeable 

material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on the 

official or a member of his or her immediate family or on: 

 
(A) Any business entity in which the designated employee has a direct or 

indirect investment worth one thousand dollars ($1,000) or more; 

 
(B) Any real property in which the designated employee has a direct or 

indirect interest worth one thousand dollars ($1,000) or more; 

 
(C) Any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans by a 

commercial lending institution in the regular course of business on terms 

available to the public without regard to official status, aggregating two 

hundred fifty dollars $250 or more in value provided to, received by or 



 

promised to the designated employee within 12 months prior to the time 

when the decision is made; 
 

 

(D) Any business entity in which the designated employee is a director, 

officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position of management; 

or 
 

 

(E) Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts 

aggregating $290 or more provided to, received by, or promised to the 

designated employee within 12 months prior to the time when the decision 

is made. 

 
(9.3) Section 9.3. Legally Required Participation. 

 
No designated employee shall be prevented from making or participating in the making 

of any decision to the extent his or her participation is legally required for the decision to 

be made. The fact that the vote of a designated employee who is on a voting body is 

needed to break a tie does not make his or her participation legally required for purposes 

of this section. 

 
(9.5) Section 9.5. Disqualification of State Officers and Employees. 

 
In addition to the general disqualification provisions of section 9, no state administrative 

official shall make, participate in making, or use his or her official position to influence 

any: 

 
(A) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to 

members of the public, regarding any investment or interest in real property; 

or governmental decision directly relating to any contract where the state 

administrative official knows or has reason to know that any party to the 

contract is a person with whom the state administrative official, or any 

member of his or her immediate family has, within 12 months prior to the 

time when the official action is to be taken: 

 
(B) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to 

members of the public regarding the rendering of goods or services totaling in 

value one thousand dollars ($1,000) or more. 

 
(10) Section 10. Manner of Disqualification. 

 
When a designated employee determines that he or she should not make a governmental 

decision because he or she has a disqualifying interest in it, the determination not to act 

may be accompanied by disclosure of the disqualifying interest. In the case of a voting 

body, this determination and disclosure shall be made part of the agency’s official record; 

in the case of a designated employee who is the head of an agency, this determination and 

disclosure shall be made in writing to his or her appointing authority; and in the case of 



 

other designated employees, this determination and disclosure shall be made in writing to 

the designated employee’s supervisor. 

 
(11) Section 11. Assistance of the Commission and Counsel. 

 
Any designated employee who is unsure of his or her duties under this code may request 

assistance from the Fair Political Practices Commission pursuant to Section 83114 and 

Regulations 18329 and 18329.5 or from the attorney for his or her agency, provided that 

nothing in this section requires the attorney for the agency to issue any formal or informal 

opinion. 

 
(12) Section 12. Violations. 

 
This code has the force and effect of law. Designated employees violating any provision 

of this code are subject to the administrative, criminal and civil sanctions provided in the 

Political Reform Act, Government Code Sections §81000-§91015. In addition, a decision 

in relation to which a violation of the disqualification provisions of this code or of 

Government Code Section §87100 or §87450 has occurred may be set aside as void 

pursuant to Government Code Section §91003. A violation of this Code may result in 

discipline under the Authority’s Personnel Rules. Such discipline may include discharge. 

 
ENDNOTES 

 
1 

Designated employees who are required to file statements of economic interests under any 

other agency's conflict of interest code, or under Article 2 for a different jurisdiction, may 

expand their statement of economic interests to cover reportable interests in both jurisdictions, 

and file copies of this expanded statement with both entities in lieu of filing separate and distinct 

statements, provided that each copy of such expanded statement filed in place of an original is 

signed and verified by the designated employee as if it were an original. See Government Code 

Section §81004. 
 

2 
See Government Code Section §81010 and 2 Cal. Code of Regs. Section §18115 for the duties 

of filing officers and persons in agencies who make and retain copies of statements and forward 

the originals to the filing officer. 
 

3 
For the purpose of disclosure only (not disqualification), an interest in real property does not 

include the principal residence of the filer. 
 

4 
Investments and interests in real property which have a fair market value of less than $1,000 are 

not investments and interests in real property within the meaning of the Political Reform Act. 

However, investments or interests in real property of an individual include those held by the 

individual's spouse and dependent children as well as a pro rata share of any investment or 

interest in real property of any business entity or trust in which the individual, spouse and 

dependent children own, in the aggregate, a direct, indirect or beneficial interest of 10 percent or 

greater. 



 

5 
A designated employee's income includes his or her community property interest in the income 

of his or her spouse but does not include salary or reimbursement for expenses received from a 

state, local or federal government agency. 
 

6 
Income of a business entity is reportable if the direct, indirect or beneficial interest of the filer 

and the filer's spouse in the business entity aggregates a 10 percent or greater interest. In 

addition, the disclosure of persons who are clients or customers of a business entity is required 

only if the clients or customers are within one of the disclosure categories of the filer. 

 
Note: Authority cited: Government Code Section §83112. Reference: Sections §87103(e), 

§87300-§87302, §89501, §89502 and §89503, Government Code. 
 
 
 
 

HISTORY 
 

1. New section filed 4-2-80 as an emergency; effective upon filing (Register 80, No. 14). 

Certificate of Compliance included. 

2. Editorial correction (Register 80, No. 29). 

3. Amendment of subsection (b) filed 1-9-81; effective thirtieth day thereafter (Register 81, No. 

2). 

4. Amendment of subsection (b)(7)(B)1. filed 1-26-83; effective thirtieth day thereafter (Register 

83, No. 5). 

5. Amendment of subsection (b)(7)(A) filed 11-10-83; effective thirtieth day thereafter (Register 

83, No. 46). 

6. Amendment filed 4-13-87; operative 5-13-87 (Register 87, No. 16). 

7. Amendment of subsection (b) filed 10-21-88; operative 11-20-88 (Register 88, No. 46). 

8. Amendment of subsections (b)(8)(A) and (b)(8)(B) and numerous editorial changes filed 8-28- 

90; operative 9-27-90 (Reg. 90, No. 42). 

9. Amendment of subsections (b)(3), (b)(8) and renumbering of following subsections and 

amendment of Note filed 8-7-92; operative 9-7-92 (Register 92, No. 32). 

10. Amendment of subsection (b)(5.5) and new subsections (b)(5.5)(A)-(A)(2) filed 2-4-93; 

operative 2-4-93 (Register 93, No. 6). 

11. Change without regulatory effect adopting Conflict of Interest Code for California Mental 

Health Planning Council filed 11-22-93 pursuant to title 1, section 100, California Code of 

Regulations (Register 93, No. 48). Approved by Fair Political Practices Commission 9-21-93. 

12. Change without regulatory effect redesignating Conflict of Interest Code for California 

Mental Health Planning Council as chapter 62, section 55100 filed 1-4-94 pursuant to title 1, 

section 100, California Code of Regulations (Register 94, No. 1). 

13. Editorial correction adding History 11 and 12 and deleting duplicate section number 

(Register 94, No. 17). 

14. Amendment of subsection (b)(8), designation of subsection (b)(8)(A), new subsection 

(b)(8)(B), and amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(B), (b)(9)(E) and Note filed 3-14-95; 

operative 3-14-95 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 95, No. 11). 

15. Editorial correction inserting inadvertently omitted language in footnote 4 (Register 96, No. 

13). 



 

16. Amendment of subsections (b)(8)(A)-(B) and (b)(8.1)(A), repealer of subsection (b)(8.1)(B), 

and amendment of subsection (b)(12) filed 10-23-96; operative 10-23-96 pursuant to 

Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 96, No. 43). 

17. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1) and (9)(E) filed 4-9-97; operative 4-9-97 pursuant to 

Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 97, No. 15). 

18. Amendment of subsections (b)(7)(B)5., new subsections (b)(8.2)-(b)(8.4)(C) and amendment 

of Note filed 8-24-98; operative 8-24-98 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) 

(Register 98, No. 35). 

19. Editorial correction of subsection (a) (Register 98, No. 47). 

20. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1), (b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 5-11-99; operative 5-11- 

99 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 99, No. 20). 

21. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 12-6-2000; operative 1-1- 

2001 pursuant to the 1974 version of Government Code section 11380.2 and Title 2, California 

Code of Regulations, section 18312(d) and (e) (Register 2000, No. 49). 

22. Amendment of subsections (b)(3) and (b)(10) filed 1-10-2001; operative 2-1-2001. 

Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of 

Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, 

nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative 

Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2001, No. 2). 

23. Amendment of subsections (b)(7)(A)4., (b)(7)(B)1.-2., (b)(8.2)(E)3., (b)(9)(A)-(C) and 

footnote 4. filed 2-13-2001. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices 

Commission v. Office of Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third 

Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 

Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2001, No. 7). 

24. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) filed 1-16-2003; operative 1-1-2003. 

Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of 

Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, 

nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative 

Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2003, No. 3). 

25. Editorial correction of History 24 (Register 2003, No. 12). 

26. Editorial correction removing extraneous phrase in subsection (b)(9.5)(B) (Register 2004, 

No. 33). 

27. Amendment of subsections (b)(2)-(3), (b)(3)(C), (b)(6)(C), (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A), (b)(9)(E) and 

(b)(11)-(12) filed 1-4-2005; operative 1-1-2005 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4 

(Register 2005, No. 1). 

28. Amendment of subsection (b)(7)(A)4. filed 10-11-2005; operative 11-10-2005 (Register 

2005, No. 41). 

29. Amendment of subsections (a), (b)(1), (b)(3), (b)(8.1), (b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 12-18- 

2006; operative 1-1-2007. Submitted to OAL pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. 

Office of Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate 

District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 

Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2006, No. 51). 

30. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 10-31-2008; operative 11- 

30-2008. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office 

of Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, 

nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative 



 

Procedure Act rulemaking requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by 

OAL) (Register 2008, No. 44). 

31. Amendment of section heading and section filed 11-15-2010; operative 12-15-2010. 

Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of 

Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, 

nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative 

Procedure Act rulemaking requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by 

OAL) (Register 2010, No. 47). 

32. Amendment of section heading and subsections (a)-(b)(1), (b)(3)-(4), (b)(5)(C), (b)(8.1)- 

(b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) and amendment of footnote 1 filed 1-8-2013; operative 2-7-2013. 

Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of 

Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, 

nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative 

Procedure Act rulemaking requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by 

OAL) (Register 2013, No. 2). 

33. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A), (b)(8.2)(E)3. and (b)(9)(E) filed 12-15-2014; 

operative 1-1-2015 pursuant to section 18312(e)(1)(A), title 2, California Code of Regulations. 

Submitted to OAL for filing and printing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. 

Office of Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate 

District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 

Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2014, No. 51). 

34. Redesignation of portions of subsection (b)(8)(A) as new subsections (b)(8)(B)-(D), 

amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A), redesignation of portions of subsection 

(b)(8.1)(A) as new subsections (b)(8.1)(B)-(C) and amendment of subsection (b)(9)(E) filed 12- 

1-2016; operative 12-31-2016 pursuant to Cal. Code Regs. tit. 2, section 18312(e). Submitted to 

OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of Administrative Law, 

3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, 

April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking 

requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by OAL) (Register 2016, No. 

49). 

This database is current through 3/10/17 Register 2017, No. 10 

2 CCR § 18730, 2 CA ADC § 18730 



 

ATTACHMENT B 

CONSULTANTS 

Commission Regulation §18700 defines “consultant” as an individual who, pursuant to a 

contract with a state or local government agency: 

(A) Makes a governmental decision whether to: 

(i) Approve a rate, rule, or regulation; 
 

(ii) Adopt or enforce a law; 
 

(iii) Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit license, application, certificate, 

approval, order, or similar authorization or entitlement; 
 

(iv) Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided it is 

the type of contract which requires agency approval; 
 

(v) Grant agency approval to a contract which requires agency approval and in 

which the agency is a party or to the specifications for such a contract; 
 

(vi) Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item; 
 

(vii) Adopt, or grant agency approval of policies, standards, or guidelines for the 

agency, or for any subdivision thereof; or 
 
 

(B) Serves in a staff capacity with the agency and in that capacity performs the same or 

substantially all the same duties for the agency that would otherwise be performed by 

an individual holding a position specified in the Agency’s Conflict of Interest Code. 
 

 

Consultant* 
 

 

Consultant shall be included in the list of designated employees and shall disclose 

pursuant to the broadcast disclosure category in the code subject to the following 

limitation: 
 

 

The Executive Director may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a 

“designated position,” is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and 

thus is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements described in the 

section. Such written determination shall include a description of the consultant’s duties 

and, based upon the description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements. The 

Executive Director’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for public 

inspection in the same manner and location as this Conflict of Interest Code. 



 

ATTACHMENT C 

DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 
 

 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

Designated employees or individuals shall disclose their financial interest pursuant to the 

appropriate disclosure category as indicated. Disclosure categories pertain to investments, real 

property, business positions and sources of income, including loans, gifts and travel payments 

from sources located in or doing business within the jurisdiction of the Fillmore and Piru 

Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (“Agency”). 
 
 

DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 

Category 1: 

A designated employee in this category must report all interests in real property as well 

as investments, business positions, sources of income, and gifts from any source in, or 

doing business in, the jurisdiction of the Agency, and all other interests, which are 

subject to the regulation or supervision of the Agency. 

 
Category 2: 

 
A designated employee in this category must report all interests in real property located 

within the Agency.  Investments, business positions in business entities and income, 

gifts, loans and travel payments, from sources in, or doing business within the Agency 

which: 
 

1.   Engages in the appraisal, acquisition, disposal, development of real property, or 

rehabilitation or construction of improvements on real property including architects, 

contractors, and subcontractors. 
 

2.   Provides services, supplies, materials, machinery, or equipment of any type utilized 

by the Agency to which the employee is assigned. 
 

3.   Are of the type which is subject to the regulation or supervision of the Agency. 

 
Category 3: 

 
A designated employee in this category must report all interests in real property located 

within the Agency.  Investments, business positions in business entities and income, 

gifts, loans and travel payments from sources in, or doing business within the Agency 

which: 
 

1. Provide services, supplies, materials, machinery or equipment of any type   utilized 

by designated filers in the Agency. 
 

2. Are of the type which is subject to the regulation or supervision of the Agency. 
 

   Category 4: 

A designated employee in this category must report all interests in real property within 

 the jurisdiction of the Agency.



  

ATTACHMENT D 

DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES 
 

POSITIONS TITLES DISCLOSURE 

CATEGORY 

General Counsel 4 

  

Interim Executive Director 4 

  

Assistant Secretary 1 

  

Consultants (that will make or participate in making 
governmental decisions on behalf of the Agency) 

4* 

  

 
*Disclosure Category 1 shall generally apply; however, the Executive Director, after consultation with 

the Agency General Counsel, shall designate the disclosure category for each consultant subject to this 

Code. If a consultant is performing duties the same as an “employee” the consultant will be assigned 

the same reporting category.  See Attachment B for the consultant definition. 

 



 

FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  

Item No.  9D 

DATE:  October 30, 2017 

TO:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT:   Resolution 2017-03 Proposition 1 Groundwater Sustainability Grant Program (Motion) 

SUMMARY 

Resolution 2017-03 authorizes the submission of a grant application on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru 

Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency under the Proposition 1 Groundwater Sustainability Grant 

Program administered by the Department of Water Resources. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Board consider approving and adopting Resolution 2017-03  authorizing the submission of a Prop 1 

Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant Program application on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins 

Groundwater Sustainability Agency. 

BACKGROUND 

The Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (Proposition 1) authorized $100 
million to be available for competitive grants for projects that develop and implement GSPs and projects 
in accordance with groundwater planning requirements established under Division 6 (commencing with 
Section 10000) (Water Code Section 79775).   

The DWR is administering the Sustainable Groundwater Planning (SGP) Grant Program, using funds 
authorized by Proposition 1, to encourage sustainable management of groundwater resources that 
support SGMA. 

As UWCD has arranged to fund the hiring of a grant writer to research, draft and submit a Prop 1 SGP 
grant application on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency, the 
adoption and approval of the resolution substantiates that the Board of Directors of the Fillmore and Piru 
Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency approves: 

1. That application be made to the California Department of Water Resources to obtain a grant 
under the 2017 Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant Program pursuant to the Water 
Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (Proposition 1) (Water Code 
Section 79700 et seq.), and to enter into an agreement to receive a grant for the Fillmore and 
Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Plan.  

2. The Board Chair, or Designee, of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
is authorized and directed to prepare the necessary data, conduct investigations, file such 
application, and execute a grant agreement with California Department of Water Resources.  

 

 

 



 

FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 
Item No 9D 
Date: October 30, 2017 
Page 2 
 

FISCAL SUMMARY 

There is no fiscal impact for this motion. 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Motion: 

“Motion to approve and adopt Resolution 2017-03 authorizing the submission of the Prop 1 Grant 

application on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency as presented,” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote: 

Director Broggie: Director Kimball: Director Long:  Director McFadden:  

Director Meneghin: Director Pace 



 

RESOLUTION 2017-03 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FILLMORE AND PIRU 

BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY AUTHORIZING 

APPLICATION FOR A GRANT UNDER THE 2017 SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER 

PLANNING GRANT PROGRAM  

 
WHEREAS, on September 16, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law Senate Bills 1168 and 1319, 

and Assembly Bill 1739, collectively known as the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), 

which amended the Water Code (Part 2.74 of Division 6 of the Water Code, Sections 10720-10737.8) and 

provides the framework for sustainable groundwater management planning and implementation; and  

WHEREAS, SGMA went into effect on January 1, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, SGMA requires local public agencies and Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) to 

develop and implement Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) or alternatives to GSPs for designated 

high and medium priority groundwater basins and subbasins; and  

WHEREAS, SGMA authorizes a combination of local agencies to form a GSA by entering into a joint 

powers agreement as authorized by the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of 

the California Government Code); and 

WHEREAS, the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (FPBGSA) is such a joint 

powers authority and exercises jurisdiction upon land overlying the entire Fillmore and Piru Basins 

(designated subbasin numbers 4-4.05 and 4-4.06, respectively by the California Department of water 

Resources’ CASGEM groundwater basin system); and 

WHEREAS, the Fillmore and Piru Basins are designated as medium- and high-priority basins, 

respectively and are required to be managed by a GSP or coordinated GSPs by January 31, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the FPBGSA is seeking funding to develop a GSP for the Fillmore and Piru Basins; and 

WHEREAS, The Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (Proposition 1) 

authorized $100 million to be available for competitive grants for projects that develop and implement 

GSPs and projects in accordance with groundwater planning requirements established under Division 6 

(commencing with Section 10000) (Water Code Section 79775); and  

WHEREAS, DWR is administering the Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant Program, using funds 

authorized by Proposition 1, to encourage sustainable management of groundwater resources that support 

SGMA; and  

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the Fillmore and Piru Basins 

Groundwater Sustainability Agency as follows: 

1. That application be made to the California Department of Water Resources to obtain a grant 

under the 2017 Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant Program pursuant to the Water Quality, 

Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (Proposition 1) (Water Code Section 79700 

et seq.), and to enter into an agreement to receive a grant for the Fillmore and Piru Basins 

Groundwater Sustainability Plan.  

2. The Board Chair, or Designee, of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability 

Agency is hereby authorized and directed to prepare the necessary data, conduct investigations, 

file such application, and execute a grant agreement with California Department of Water 

Resources.  



ADOPTED, SIGNED and APPROVED this October 30, 2017.  

 

 

 

 

___________________________  

Director Kelly Long, Chair 

 

 

 

 

___________________________ (ATTEST) 

Kris Sofley, interim Executive Director 

   

 

 



FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  

Item No.  9E 

DATE:  October 30, 2017 

TO:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT:   Cost Reimbursement Agreement with United Water Conservation District 

SUMMARY 

As discussed at the Special Board Meeting of September 7, 2017, the FPBGSA has a few options to pursue 

for possible funding, one of which, provision of “in-kind” services to offset out of pocket expenses, Mr. 

Morgan was confirming with the United Water Conservation District (UWCD).  As part of this in-kind 

service/cost reimbursement agreement, UWCD would hire the District’s grant writer to complete the Prop 

1 Grant funding application on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Board to consider approving and signing the Cost Reimbursement Agreement with United Water 
Conservation District agreeing to reimburse UWCD for in-kind services, plus interest at a prevailing 
interest rate established by Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).   

BACKGROUND 

Mr. Morgan approached the Board of United Water Conservation District requesting the establishment 
of an “in-kind” services arrangement between the District and the FPBGSA, which would allow for the 
District to help the GSA with personnel and other services during its development stage, with the GSA 
agreeing to reimburse the District for its expense outlay related to these services with interest at the 
prevailing Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) rate, by June 30, 2018. 

As covered in Article 14 of the Joint Powers of Authority agreement between the County of Ventura, the 
City of Fillmore and United Water Conservation District,  

14.2 For the purpose of funding the expenses and ongoing operations of the Agency, the Board 
of Directors shall maintain a funding account in connection with the annual budget process.  The 
Board of Directors may fund the Agency as provided in Chapter 8 of SGMA, commencing with 
section 10730 of the Water Code.  As authorized by Government Code Section 6504, the Members 
may make initial contributions, payments and advances for operating the Agency, all of which 
shall be repaid to the Members pursuant to, and with accrued interest, as set forth in Section 14.3 
herein.  The Members agree that the Agency, and not the Members, have the sole responsibility 
to develop and implement a funding program to fiscally and fully implement the Agency’s SMGA 
compliance efforts and ongoing operations. 

14.3     Return of Contributions.   In accordance  with Government  Code section 6512.1, 

repayment or return to the Members of all or any part of any contributions made by Members 

and any revenues by the Agency  may be directed by the Board of Directors at such time 

and upon such terms as the Board of Directors may decide; provided that (1) any distributions 

shall be made in proportion to the contributions  paid by each Member to the Agency, and (2) 



FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  
Item No.  9E 
DATE: October 30, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

any capital contribution   paid  by  a  Member  voluntarily,  and  without  obligation  to  make  

such  capital contribution pursuant to Section 14.2, shall be returned to the contributing 

Member, together with accrued interest at the annual rate published  as the yield of the 

Local Agency Investment Fund administered by the California State Treasurer, before any 

other return of contributions to the Members is made.  The Agency shall hold title to all funds 

and property acquired by the Agency during the term of this Agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The fiscal impact of this agreement currently is the $28,000 contracted to hire the grant 
writer plus interest at the prevailing Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) rate, reimbursable to The 
District by June 30, 2018. 

 

 

Proposed Motion: 

“Motion to approve and sign a Cost Reimbursement Agreement with the United Water Conservation 

District on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency,” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote: 

Director Broggie: Director Kimball: Director Long:  Director McFadden:  

Director Meneghin: Director Pace 

 



FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY  

Item No.   9F 

DATE:  October 30, 2017 

TO:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT:   Future Workshop and Meeting Dates 

 

SUMMARY 

As discussed during previous Board of Directors meeting, the Board will review potential scheduling dates 
for workshops and meetings proposed over the next several months and direct the interim Executive 
Director as to how to schedule and publicize these events. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

1.  Board to approve a Special Board Meeting to review and approve the Proposition 1 DWR Grant 
application prior to its submission deadline date of November 13.  (Dates most likely for 
consideration are Monday, November 6, through Thursday, November 9) 

2. At the recommendation of the Ad Hoc committee reviewing proposals for legal services, select 

the top legal firms considered on or before November 9 and invite them to present their 

proposals formally to the board and accept questions and answers from the Board at the next 

Regular Board Meeting scheduled for Thursday, November 16 at 6pm. 

3. Review availability of Veteran’s Hall in Fillmore for a series of Budget Workshops, educating the 

public as to potential rates/fees and the estimated operating expenses of the FPB GSA in 

developing a Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the Fillmore and Piru Basins. (Dates for 

consideration span November, December and January) 

4. Review availability of Veteran’s Hall in Fillmore for a series of Basin Boundary Modification 

Workshops, incorporating public education and outreach in working towards the GSA’s Basin 

Boundary Modification submission due to the Department of Water Resources in March 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact at this time 

 

Proposed Motion: “Motion to direct interim Executive Director to reserve meeting space at Veteran’s 

Hall in Fillmore on the dates and for the purposes discussed,” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote: 

Director Broggie: Director Kimball: Director Long:  Director McFadden:  

Director Meneghin: Director Pace 


	2017-10-30 FPBGSA Board Meeting Agenda DRAFT Signed
	7A Staff Report - Update on RFP for Legal Services - Information Item
	7A Attachment 2017-10-30 Klein DeNatale Goldner Proposal
	7A Attachment 2017-10-30 Lagerlof Senecal Proposal
	7A Attachment 2017-10-30 McMurtrey Hartsock and Worth Legal Services Proposal
	7A Attachment 2017-10-30 Olivarez Madruga Lemieux ONeill Legal Proposal
	7A Attachment 2017-10-30 Young Wooldridge Legal Proposal
	7B Brown Act Rosenberg Rules of Order and other information
	7B Rosenberg Rules of Order
	7B Govt Code training - highlighted
	8 2017-09-18 FPBGSA Board Meeting MINUTES DRAFT
	9A Cash Advance from VCWPD - staff report
	9A Attachment 2017-10-30 Ventura County FPBGSA Loan Agreement
	9B Website design and hosting services from County of Ventura IT Services Dept - staff report
	9B Attachment FPBGSA Website Design Proposal
	9C Revised Conflict of Interest Code- staff report
	9C Attachment Amended Conflict of Interest Code - Amended Resolution 2017-02
	9D Resolution 2017-03 Proposition 1 Groundwater Sustainabilty Grant Program Motion - staff report
	9D Attachment Resolution 2017-03 DWR Prop 1 Grant submission
	9E Cost Reimbursement Agreement with United Water Conservation District - staff report
	9F Future Workshop and Meeting Dates - staff report



